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LIST OF DIRECTORS AS ON 31.03.2024

S. No. Director Designation Date Of Appt
1 Mr. K. Sanjay Murthy Chairman 01-10-2021
2 Mr Ashok Chandra Vice Chairman 18.10.2023
3 Mr Mohammad Thopic Managing Director & CEO 17-04-2023
Prof. Virander Singh Independent Director 12-06-2017
4 Chauhan Reappointed on 28.09.2022
For Term of 5 Years
5 Prof. Bhaskar Ramamurthi Nominee Director 12-06-2017
Prof. Rishikesha Nominee Director 12-06-2017
6 Thiruvenkata Krishnan
12-06-2017
7 Prof. Ashok Misra Independent Director Reappointed on 28.09.2022

For Term of 5 Years

Mr Sunil Kumar Barnwal
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18.10.2023
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NOTICE is hereby given that the SEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Shareholders of Higher Education Financing Agency will be held on 30th September,
2024 at 12:30 PM through Video Conferencing ('VC')/Other Audio Visual Means
('OAVM)') facility to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

Date:30.09.2024

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and reports of the Board of Directors &
Auditors thereon along with Provisional comments of C&AG.

To authorise Board of Directors to appoint and for fixing the remuneration of the
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as Ordinary

resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Board of Directors is hereby authorised to confirm the
appointment of the auditor of the company for the FY 2024-25 which will be
appointed by C&AG in terms of provisions of section 139(5) of the companies act
2013.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Board of Directors is hereby Authorised to fix the
Remuneration of Auditors of the company for FY 2024-25."

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sunil Kumar Barnwal, Director of the
Company who retire by Rotation in terms of Section 152 of the companies act 2013
and Article 140 of Articles of Association of the company and, being eligible
proposed himself for the Reappointment on HEFA Board in terms with article 142
&128 of AOA.

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as Ordinary

resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Shri Sunil Kumar Barnwal (DIN: 07610634), Director of the
Company who retire by Rotation in terms of Section 152 of the companies act 2013
and Article 140 of Articles of Association of the company and, being eligible be and is
hereby reappointed as Director of the Company in terms with article 142 & 128 of
AOA."

By Order of the Board of Directors

Mohammad Thophic

Place : Bangalore Managing Director & CEO
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NOTES:

Pursuant to General Circular 09/2024 dated 19.09.2024 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA Circulars") allowing Companies to hold AGM through Video
Conferencing mode till 30.09.2025, the 07th AGM of the Company is being
conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which does not require physical presence of
members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the 7th AGM shall be the
Registered Office of the Company.

In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the
facility of appointment of proxies by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not
be available for the 07th AGM.

In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice of the 07th AGM will be available on the
website of the Company at www.hefa.co.in

Members may join the 07th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility by following the
procedure as mentioned below which shall be kept open for the Members, 30
minutes before the time scheduled to start the 07th AGM and the Company may
close the window for joining the VC/OAVM Facility 30 minutes after the scheduled
time to start the AGM.

Attendance of the Members participating in the 07th AGM through VC/OAVM
Facility shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section
103 of the Act.

Since the company has less than 50 members, the Chairman may decide to conduct
a vote by show of hands, unless a demand for poll is made by any member in
accordance with section 109 of the Act.

Once such demand is made, the following procedure shall be followed, where a poll
on any item is required, the members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by
sending emails through their email addresses which are registered with the
company. The said emails shall only be sent to the designated email address
circulated by the company in advance.

Explanation: The poll will take place during the meeting, and the members may
convey their assent or dissent only at such stage on items considered in the meeting
by sending e-mails to the designated e-mail address of the company, which was
circulated by the company in the notice sent to the members.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map is not
annexed in this Notice.
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Notes and Explanatory Statement as per section 102 of the Companies act 2013

Item 1: To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and reports of the Board of Directors & Auditors
thereon along with Provisional comments of C&AG.

Note : The Annual financial statements was approved by Board of Directors in its
meeting dated 30.05.2024. The Approved Annual financial statements and Auditor's
report was submitted to C&AG for their observations. The C&AG commenced
supplementary Audit on 15.07.2024 And issued Provisional Comments on Annual

Accounts/financial Statements on 19.09.2024. As per Section 96 and Section 102 of
the companies act 2013, The adoption of Annual Financial Statements of the Company
for FY 2023-24 is required to be transacted in Annual General Meeting.

Further, as per Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, the C&AG shall, within 60 days of
the receipt of the annual report, comment on/supplement such an audit report, and the
comments of the C&AG must be placed before the Annual General Meeting of the
company along with the Auditor's Report. As the final comments of the C&AG are not yet
available and the company has to convene its Annual General Meeting before
30.09.2024, we are presenting the provisional comments along with our reply to the
members at the Annual General Meeting. The final comments shall be presented to the
members at an EGM upon receipt from the C&AG.

The Annual Financial Statements, Auditor's Report, along with the provisional
comments of the C&AG, and the Director's Report, have been circulated to all the
members. The Annual Financial Statements, Auditor's Report, along with the
provisional comments of the C&AG and the Director's Report, shall form part of the
company's Annual Report for FY 2023-24. The provisional comments of the C&AG shall
be substituted with the final comments and the C&AG certificate in the Annual Report
after placing the same before the EGM, if received before the publication of the Annual
Report for FY 2023-24.

Item 2: To authorise Board of Directors to appoint and for fixing the remuneration of the
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.

Note : As per Section 139 (5) of the companies act 2013, in case of the Government
company, the C&AG shall appoint the Auditor within 6 month of the commencement of
financial year which shall hold the office till conclusion of next Annual General Meeting.
C&AG is yet to appoint the Auditor of the company for the FY 2024-25. In this regard we
have already requested the C&AG vide our letter dated 04.09.2024. Since, the
appointment of auditor of the company has not been informed to the company, the
appointment of auditor cannot be confirmed in the present Annual General Meeting.
Thus, Members are requested to Authorise the Board of Director to confirm the
appointment of Auditor of the company for FY 2024-25 which will be appointed by
C&AG of India. Further, Board may be Authorise to Fix the remuneration of Auditor of
the company for FY 22024-25.
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Item 3: To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sunil Kumar Barnwal, Director of the
Company who retire by Rotation in terms of Section 152 of the companies act 2013 and
Article 140 of Articles of Association of the company and, being eligible proposed himself
for the Reappointment on HEFA Board in terms with article 142 &128 of AOA.

Note: At Present company has 8 directors. Out of the 8 directors, 2 are Independent
Directors (Prof. Ashok Mishra & Prof Virander Singh Chauhan). As per Section 152(6) of
the companies act office of Independent directors are not eligible to retire by rotation.
Further, as per Article 128 of AOA, MD &CEO appointment by Canara Bank is on non-
rotation Basis and Chairman (Shri K Sanjay Murthy) and Vice Chairman (Shri Ashok
Chandra) is director by virtue of ex-officio position.

Thus, out of the remaining 3 directors (Shri Sunil Barnwal, Prof. Rishikesha T.
Krishnan & Prof Bhaskar Ramamurthy) 1/3 of the directors shall be retired annually in
compliance to article 140 of the Article of association (AOA) of the company. As per
Article 141 of AOA, the director who have been longest in the office since their last
appointment will be retire first. As per Article 142 of AOA, a retiring director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Directors Prof Rishikesha T. Krishnan & Prof. Bhaskar
Ramamurthy was retired by rotation and re-elected again in Annual General meeting
held on 17.11.2023. Thus, holding of office of Director by Shri Sunil Kumar Barnwal
(Since 18.10.2023) is longest among the directors eligible to retire by rotation. Being
eligible, it is proposed for reappointment of Shri Sunil Kumar Barnwal on the HEFA
Board.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Mohammad Thophic
Managing Director & CEO
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CHAIRMAN’S SPEECH

Dear Shareholders, Members of HEFA, Directors, and Distinguished Guests,

A very warm welcome to the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Higher Education

Financing Agency (HEFA). It is my great privilege to address you today as we reflect on the

milestones we've achieved and discuss our strategic vision for the future of higher education

in India.

1.

Setting the Stage: HEFA's Foundation and Vision In 2016-17, the Finance Minister

announced the establishment of HEFA, a not-for-profit organization aimed at financing

the improvement of infrastructure in top educational institutions across India. With an
initial capital base of Rs. 1000 crore, HEFA was tasked with leveraging market funds,
supplemented by donations and CSR contributions, to bring world-class infrastructure to

India's leading academic institutions.

Since then, HEFA has steadily grown. We were licensed under Section 8 on 30.05.2017

and incorporated under the Companies Act on 31.05.2017. Later that year, on

21.11.2017, we received NBFC registration from the Reserve Bank of India.

Our mission was expanded in the 2017-18 budget under the Revitalising Infrastructure

and Systems in Education (RISE) by 2022 initiative. This broadened HEFA's role to cover

all centrally funded institutions. Currently, the scheme is renewed for another three years

(upto 2026), targeting infrastructure development worth Rs. 58,000 crore. This expansion

will now cover a Broader range of institutions, including IIITs (PPP Model), older IIMs, non-

technical institutions, and technical institutions established after 2014 for full payment
including interest.

HEFA's vision remains clear: "To enable India's premier educational institutions to excel

and reach the top in global rankings by financing world-class infrastructure, including

R&D facilities." This vision aligns with the national objective of strengthening India's

position as a global knowledge hub.

HEFA's Performance: A Year in Review As 0f 31.03.2024, am proud to report HEFA's key

performance highlights:

*» HEFA's paid-up capital stands at Rs. 5293.75 crore, with no fresh capital infusion this
year and reserve upto Rs. 2027.60 Crore.

* Atotal of 103 institutions have been financed, with disbursements during FY 2023-24
amounting to Rs. 3123.04 crore, bringing cumulative disbursements to Rs. 19,968.26
crore.

* 18 new loans amounting to Rs. 3620.83 crore were sanctioned, bringing cumulative
sanctioned to Rs. 39,719.75 crore. Sanctions increased BY 38.59% during the year.

* Interestincome from loans was Rs. 380.16 crore, and the surplus for FY 2023-24 was
Rs. 344.82 crore, which will form part of HEFA's resources for future lending.

* In addition to above, HEFA has also supported the research initiatives of the Institutes
by spending/allocating Rs. 8.03 Crore.

* 2newinstitutions are added during the year and lead sourced for 40 Institutions.

These achievements reflect the tireless efforts of our team and the cooperation of our partner

institutions. Our commitment to financing critical infrastructure has driven the growth and

global competitiveness of many educational institutions.
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Higher Education in India: A New Era We are witnessing a dynamic shift in India's higher
education landscape, especially with the visionary National Education Policy (NEP) 2020.
This policy emphasizes inclusivity, accessibility, and multi disciplinary learning, creating
a framework for India to emerge as a global knowledge leader. Several key developments
align with HEFA's objectives:

e Autonomy and Internationalization: There has been a significant push towards
granting more autonomy to institutions and encouraging international collaborations.
HEFA has supported this by facilitating funding for cutting-edge research facilities and
global academic partnerships.

¢ Technology Integration: With the digitalization of education, institutions are rapidly
incorporating technology to provide blended learning environments. HEFA has
supported this by offering financial assistance for the development of digital
Infrastructure at the Institutes, and research in emerging technologies such as
artificial intelligence and data science.

¢ Research and Innovation: India is gradually making its mark in global research. The
establishment of centres of excellence, research labs, and incubation centres, Research
Parks funded by HEFA has given a boost to innovation across multiple domains, from
engineering to life sciences.

¢ Equity and Inclusion: HEFA has funded institutions in farflung regions at the length
and Breadth of the country, ensuring access to quality education for all sections of
society.

Strategic Initiatives for the Future : As we look ahead, HEFA is committed to:

¢ Innovation Funding: We will continue to support research-driven institutions,
contributing to indigenous innovation.

¢ Digital Infrastructure: HEFA sees tremendous potential in financing development of
Digital Infrastructure in the Institutes' campus especially in Artificial Intelligence
driven facilities, research facilities in emerging technologies etc.

¢ Inclusive Growth: We will focus on financing educational institutions in rural and North
eastern region, ensuring that quality education reaches every corner of the country.

Gratitude and Acknowledgments : I extend my heartfelt thanks to our shareholders, the

Ministry of Education, the Government of India, and Canara Bank for their unwavering

support. I would also like to express my deep gratitude to our partner institutions for their

commitment to academic excellence and for embracing our vision.

Lastly, my sincere appreciation goes to my colleagues on the Board and the entire team at

HEFA for their dedication and hard work. It is through your efforts that we continue to

achieve new milestones and exceed expectations.

Conclusion : As we stand at the crossroads of India's education revolution, HEFA remains

steadfast in its mission to empower educational institutions. Together, we will shape the

future of higher education in India, contributing to the nation's growth as a global
knowledge economy.

Thank you for your attention, and I look forward to a fruitful and engaging session ahead.

With Best Wishes,
K. Sanjay Murthy
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,

The Directors are pleased to present the Seventh Annual Report and the Audited

Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024.
I FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(A) SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL RESULTS

The comparative position of working results of the company for the financial year 2023-

24vis-a-vis previous year is as mentioned below:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 | 2021-22
Revenue from operations:

- Interest on loans 380.16 401.94 586.32

- Interest on Deposit with Bank 16.51 43.54 3.02

- Other Income 0.00 0.33 -
Total Revenue: 396.67 445.81 589.34
Less: Total expenditure 51.85 48.55 141.82
(Deficit) /Surplus before Tax 344.82 397.26 447.52
*Tax Expenses - - -
(Deficit) /Surplus for the year 344.82 397.26 447.52

*Our Company is registered under section 12AB of Income Tax Act, 1961 and income is exempted
from Income Tax and hence no provision for tax has been made in the accounts.

(B) TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company is holding an amount of Rs. 1600.65 Crorein Reserves, Rs. 405.51 Crore

in Statutory Reserves and Rs. 21.44 Crore in Impairment Reserves respectively. As a
Section 8 company, no dividend is distributed and hence the entire surplus amount in

Income & Expenditure Account is transferred to Reserves.
(C) SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company and the Paid up Capital of the Company
as on 31st March 2024 stood at Rs. 10,000 Crore and Rs. 5293.75 Crore respectively.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
'(a) RISE by 2022'scheme- expansion of the scope of HEFA

The scheme of RISE by 2022 was approved by the Cabinet on 04.07.2018,
expanding the scope of Higher Education Financing Agency (HEFA) by enhancing
its capital base to Rs. 10,000 crore and tasking it to mobilise Rs. 1,00,000
crore.

As per RISE by 2022, following five financing windows were identified to address the
requirements of various categories of institutions to be financed:

» Technical Institutions more than 10 years old: Repay the whole Principal

Portion from the internally generated budgetary resources.

» Technical Institutions started between 2008 and 2014: Repay 25% of the
principal portion from internal resources, and receive grant for the balance of
the Principal portion.

» Central Universities started prior to 2014: Repay 10% of the principal portion

from internal resources, and receive grant for the balance of the Principal
portion.

» Newly established Institutions (started after 2014), for funding construction of

permanent campuses: Grant would be provided for complete servicing of loan

through OH-31. Other Institutions of MoEwith no scope for fee revision or
internal resource generation would figure in this category.

» Other educational institutions and grant-in-aid institutions of Ministry of

Health: Sponsoring Department/Ministry to give a commitment for complete
servicing of the principal and interest by ensuring adequate funds in the OH-31
for the institution.

Ministry of Finance vide letter No: 13(04)/PFC-II/2016 dated 07.09.2020
communicated to Ministry of Education that Projects which were sanctioned under
Window IV & V shall be directly funded from budgetary grants. Accordingly, Ministry of
Education vide letter No:F.NO.41-04/2020-TS.VII(Pt.1) dated 22.09.2020 directed
HEFA to Cease the further disbursements of loan under window IV & V category of
institutions.

Subsequently MOE&MoHFW had remitted Rs. 2752.57 crores towards closure of 27
accounts coming under Window IV & Window V in March 2022. All the accounts
coming under Window IV & Window V were closed except NCI, Jhajjar for an amount of
Rs. 297.50 crores, which was also closed on 31.03.2023.
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The scheme is recently renewed for another three years (upto 2026), targeting
infrastructure development worth Rs. 58,000 crore. The Revised scheme has
introduced revised HEFA Windows which was conveyed to HEFA by MoEvide their
LETTER F.NO. 41-01/2023 TS-VII (PT. 1) MoE dated 19.12.2023. Therevised Scheme
shall now cover a Broader range of institutions, including IlITs (PPP Model), older IIMs,
non-technical institutions, and technical institutions established after 2014 for full
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payment including interest. The revised HEFA scheme is furnished as below :

Window Institute Type Repayment | Principal Interest
period Payment | Payment
I Technical Institutions 10 years 100% 10% by
established prior to by institute | Institute
2008 and 90%
by Govt.
11 Technical Institutions 10 years 25% by 10% by
established between institute Institute
2008 and 2014 and 75% and 90%
Govt. by Govt.
I (a) Central 10 years 10% by 100%
Universities and non institute by Govt.
technical institutions and 90%
established prior to Govt.
2014.
(b) Central 15 years 10% by 100%
Universities and non institute by Govt.
technical institutions and 90%
established after 2014 Govt.
(c) Technical 15 years 10% by 5% by
Institutions established institute Institute
after 2014. and 90% and 95%
Govt. by Govt.
1\Y% IIIT (PPPs) and IIMs 10 years 100% by 100%
institute by
institute

The revised HEFA scheme is aimed to sanction Rs. 58000.00 crore by FY 2025-26.
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(a) SANCTIONED LOANS AND DISBURSEMENT

During the year, Company has sanctioned 18 new loans aggregating to Rs. 3620.83
crores. The total disbursements made during financial year 2023-24 were Rs. 3123.04
Crores and the cumulative disbursements upto 31.03.2024 were aggregating to Rs.
19968.25 crores. The company has sanctioned loans to 103 institutions as on
31.03.2024. The position of cumulative window wise sanctioned & disbursement is as

under:
WINDOW | WINDOW I WINDOW IlI WINDOW IV WINDOW V
FY SA DA SA DA SA DA SA DA SA DA TSA TDA
2017-18 | 1804.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 1804.30 0.00

2018-19 | 2140.70 | 529.56 | 5481.80 | 246.99 0.00 0.00 | 2700.00 | 440.65 | 5250.00 | 1317.80 | 15573.00 2535.00

2019-20 | 769.80 | 780.86 | 1153.40 | 851.92 | 2063.40 | 289.95 | 4167.10 | 556.01 | 3040.00 | 2616.40 | 11194.00 5095.10

2020-21 | 611.93 [ 880.51 141.88 | 1097.00 | 1258.90 | 419.70 0.00 | 506.84 | 82333 | 773.93 | 2836.10 3678.00

2021-22 | 438.07 | 839.61 240.00 | 1240.90 | 1394.50 | 545.64 0.00 1.13 0.00 0.00 | 2072.60 2627.30

2022-23 | 575.91 | 718.28 | 1558.80 | 1495.50 | 477.87 | 696.12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 2612.60 2909.90

2023-24 | 1509.65 | 791.91 | 1507.03 | 1654.46 | 604.15 | 676.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 3620.83 3123.03

Total 7850.36 | 4540.73 | 10082.91 | 6586.77 | 5798.82 | 2628.07 | 6867.10 | 1504.63 | 9113.33 | 4708.13 | 39713.43 19968.33
FY- FINANCIAL YEAR, SA-SANCTIONED AMOUNT, DA-DISBURSED AMOUNT,TSA -TOTAL SANCTIONED AMOUNT,TDA -TOTAL DISBURSED AMOUNT

(c) RECOVERIES
» Recoveries under loans are up to date and there are no overdues.

» All the loan accounts are standard and there are no Non-performing Assets
(NPA).

» The escrow mechanism for recovery of Principal and Interest is working well.

II. SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

» Directors inducted on the Board

= The following nominee directors has been inducted in the HEFA Board
during the FY 2023-24:

10
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Date of

Name of the Nominee Director Appointment

Shri Mohammad Thophic, (DGM, Canara | 17-04-2023
Bank on the Board of the company)
Shri Ashok Chandra, (Executive Director, | 18-10-2023
Canara Bank on the Board of the
company)

Shri Sunil Kumar Barnwal, (Additional 18-10-2023
Secretary MoE)

» Capital infusion

There was no infusion of Equity Capital into the Company during the year.
» Ratings

ICRA has upgraded issuer rating to AA+(stable) from AA(stable)based on the
company financials as on 31.03.2023.

III CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 07.03.2019, constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee as required under Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 prescribing the roles and responsibilities of CSR committee. The Committee met
on 26.03.2024during the reported financial year. The HEFA has invited the Research
Projects to be sanctioned under CSR from all the institutes of Higher Education. HEFA
has received 134 proposals. These Proposals were scrutinized by the experts and were
placed before the Committee. The Committee finally sanctioned 18 Projects (Furnished
in Annexure-A)

THE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE AS ON 31.03.2024:

[.  Prof. Ashok Misra, Independent Director and Chairman of the Committee
II. Mr. Sunil Kumar Barnwal, Nominee Director and Member of the Committee
III. Mr. Mohammad Thophic, Managing Director and Member of the Committee

IV. Dr. Rishikesha Thiruvenkata Krishnan, Director and Member of the Committee

11
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IV. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Change in Directots :During the Financial year 2023-24, the Following changes in
Directors and Key Managerial Persons took Place:

Sr. Name of the Designation Date of Ceased to
No.| pDirector Appointment | be Director
w.e.f.
L. | Shri Ashok Vice-Chairman 18-10-2023 | wevvvvvvvvnnnnn.
Chandra Executive Director,
Canara Bank
2. | Shri Sunil Nominee Director, 18-10-2023 | —-mmmmmmmeee
KumarBarnwal Additional Secretary
MoE, Government of
India
3 Shri Vineet Joshi | Nominee 18-11-2020 01.09.2023
Director,MoE ,
Government of India
(Additional Secretary ,
MOoE)
4 Shri Rajesh Nominee Director, 06-08-2020 01.09.2023
Bhushan MoH & FW,
Government of India

The aforementioned changes were already recorded in Previous Director's Report
placed in Annual General Meeting of the Company for FY 2022-23 held on 17.11.2023.
There are no changes in directorship since last Annual General Meeting to till the date
of this Report.

CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE PERIOD SINCE

LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO TILL THE DATE OF THIS REPORT:

e In terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013; MrGourav Sunil was

appointed Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f 17.06.2023. The Change
was also disclosed in Previous Director's Report placed in Annual General
Meeting of the Company for FY 2022-23 heldon 17.11.2024.

Mr Amit Garg is appointed as Chief Risk officer of the Company W.e.f
22.04.2024 (Approved by the Board in its meeting dated 30.05.2024) in place of
Mr Sunil Dutt Verma who demitted the office on 19.04.2024.

There are no other changes in Key Managerial Persons since last Annual General
Meeting to till the date of this Report.
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V. BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors of the Company duly met Three (3) times during the period
under review; details are as follows:

Particulars Date of Board Meeting
1st Board Meeting 01.09.2023
2nd Board Meeting 17.11.2023
3rd Board Meeting 12.03.2024

Above Board Meetings were attended by the Directors as under:

S.No. | Name of Members Meeting(s) | Meeting(s)
held Attended
1 Mr. K Sanjay Murthy 3 3
2 Mr. Ashok Chandra 2 2
3 Mr. Sunil Kumar Barnwal 2 2
4 Mr. Mohammad Thophic 3 3
5 Dr. RishikeshaThiruvenkata 3 3
Krishnan
6 Prof. Bhaskar Ramamurthi 3 3
7 Prof. Ashok Misra 3 3
8 Prof.Virander Singh Chauhan 3 3

*Mr Vineet Joshi and Mr Rajesh Bhushan Demitted the office on 01.09.2024

The composition of Board of Directors of the company as on 31.03.2024 as follows:

S.No. | Name Designation DIN

1 Mr. K Sanjay Murthy Chairman -Nominee 03532374
Director-(Secretary, MoE
Government of India)

2 Mr. Ashok Chandra Vice-Chairman - 09322823
Nominee Director —
(Executive Director,
Canara Bank)

3 Mr. Mohammad Thophic Managing Director & 10118049
CEO
4 Mr. Sunil Kumar Barnwal Nominee Director 07610634

-Additional (Secretary,
MoE, Government of
India)
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5 Dr. RishikeshaThiruvenkata | Nominee Director, 00064067
Krishnan MoE (Government of
India)
6 Prof. Bhaskar Ramamurthi Nominee Director, 01914155
MoE (Government of
India)
7 Prof. Ashok Misra Independent Director 00006051
8 Prof. Virandar Singh Independent Director 00454113
Chauhan

VI STATUTORY AUDITORS

VII

M/s. K.P.RAO & CO., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India pursuant to the provisions of Section 139
(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The report of the Statutory Auditors is appended with the Balance sheet.
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors to the
best of their knowledge and belief confirm that:

(i) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(i) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the
periodended March 31%, 2024.

(iii) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(iv) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

(v) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating efficiently

VIII ANNUAL RETURN

The web-link of annual return: http:/ /hefa.co.in/invest-in-us/#notifications
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 07.03.2019 constituted the Audit
Committee (AC) as required under Master Direction DNBR. PD.
008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01%, 2019for Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.The Committee met three times
during the reported financial year.

The Composition of Audit Committee as on 31.03.2024:
1. Prof. Ashok Misra, Independent Director and Chairman of the Committee.

2. Prof. Virander Singh Chauhan, Independent Director and Member of the
Committee.

3. Mr. Ashok Chandra, Vice Chairman and Member of the Committee.

4. Dr.Rishikesha Thiruvenkata Krishnan Director and Member of the
Committee.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 07.03.2019 constituted a
Nomination & Remuneration Committee(NRC) as required under Master Direction
DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01%, 2019for Non-Banking
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. As per the RBI Master
directions, the Nomination committee so constituted shall function as per section
178 of the Companies act. However, As per the provisions of the Companies act
2013, the Provisions of section 178 is not applicable to Section 8 Companies. The
RBI also observed the same in its select scope Inspection for FY 2020-21. Thus,
HEFA being section 8 companies are exempted from the applicability of
Nomination& Remuneration Committee (NRC). The Discontinuation of NRC was
given to effect by the Board in its meeting dated 30.05.2024 by suitably modifying
the Corporate Governance policy of HEFA.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The elements of risk threatening the Company's existence are very minimal. The
Company has Board approved Risk Management Policy in place which covers the
mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various key business risks in
its business operations.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 07.03.2019 constituted Risk
Management Committee (RMC) as required under Master Direction DNBR. PD.
008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01%, 2019for Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.The Committee met Quarterly
during the reported financial year.
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The composition of Risk Management Committee as on 31.03.2024 was as follows:

1. RishikeshaThiruvenkata Krishnan, Director and Chairman of the Committee.

2. Mr. Sunil Dutt Verma, Senior Executive Vice President, HEFAand Member of
the Committee.

3. Mr. Rahul Saini, Chief Financial Officer, HEFAand Member of the Committee.
4. Mrs. Roopa K,Vice President, HEFAand Member of the Committee.

With Change in Chief Risk officer (CRO) w.e.f 22.04.2024, Mr Amit Garg is part of
Risk Management Committee of HEFA in place of Mr Sunil Dutt Verma.

XII RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Financial Year 2023-24, HEFA has availed Rs 500.00 as term Loan
from Canara Bank. The Audit Committee in its meeting held on 03.08.2024 has
approved term Loan of Rs. 500.00 Crore from Canara Bank with tenure of 10 years
and rate of interest of 8.25%. Board of Directors has approved the same in its
meeting held on 01.09.2023.

During the Financial year, HEFA has Paid Rs 31.23 Crore as Management feesto
the Canara Bank in terms with the Management Service agreement executed on
12.06.2017.

XIII MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial
statements relate and the date of this Report.

XIV DECLARATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS

1) The Company has adequate internal financial control system in place which
operates effectively.

2) There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's
operations in future

XV STATUTORY COMPLIANCE& RBI COMPLIANCE

During the period under review company has strictly complied with
- Compliances applicable under the Companies Act, 2013

- RBI Master DirectionsDNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 01.09.2016
applicable to Non-deposit taking and non-systemically important NBFC until
December, 2018.
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- On becoming systemically important NBFC in December, 2018 Quarter, Company
has complied with the RBI Master Directions DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17
dated 01.09.2016applicable to Non-deposit taking and systemically important
NBFC.

- The Annual General Meeting of HEFA for FY 2022-23 was convened on
17.11.2023. The extension to convene Annual General meeting was Granted
for 2 Months by Registrar of Companies vide SRN No F64921950 (RoC letter
dated 10.10.2023). The Extension was sought as C&AG comments were not
available with HEFA. However, considering the significant delay in receipt of
C&AG comments, and fast approaching last date, we have convened Annual
General Meeting of the Company with C&AG observations on 17.11.2023.
The C&AG Comments were received on 25.01.2024 and was placed to the
members in Extraordinary General Meeting dated 12.03.2024. As directed in
the EGM dated 12.03.2024, we have made the Disclosure for the same in
Directors' report for FY 2023-24.

XVI FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company is a non deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company as per the
terms of the certificate of registration issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).
The Company has not accepted any fixed deposit during the year under review.

XVII PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company.

XIX PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION ARE GIVEN IN THE PRESCRIBED FORMAT UNDER THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, hence the provisions
of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. The Company
is not carrying any activity relating to export and has not used or earned any
Foreign Exchange.

XX PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees on the rolls of the Company and the information required
under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the
Company.

XXI DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

During the period under review, no complaints/cases were filed pursuant to
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.
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XXII APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the support and
co-operation received from the Ministry of Education, Government of India,
Canara Bank and the Educational Institutions - our Borrowers and Company's
staff and executives during the year under review.

For and on behalf of the Board

Mohammad Thophic
Managing Director
DIN: 10118049

Place: Bengaluru
Date:30.09.2024
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Higher Eduecation Financing Agency
for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of
the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have
been done by them vide their revised Audit Report dated 25 October 2023 which supersedes
their earlier audit repont dated 01 September 2023.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Higher Education Financing Agency
for the vear ended 31 March 2023 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary
audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the
statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. The Audit Report
has been revised by the statutory auditor to give effect to some of my audit observations
raised during supplementary audit.

Based on my supplementary audit, [ would like to highlight the following significant
matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in
my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and
the related audit report.

A. Comments on Financial Position

A.1 Balance Sheet

Non-financial Assets
Current Assets (Net)- Note 7: ®11.33 crore

The Company has not accounted for TD'S on accrual basis and accounted for %11.33 crore
instead of %12.39 crore shown in Form 26AS. This has resulted in understatement of current
assets by ®1.06 crore.
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B. (Mher Comments

B.1 The Ind AS financial stalements comprise Balance Sheet, Statement of Income and
Expenditure, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement but while according
approval on financial statements, the Board resolution regarding approval of the same does
not mention “Statement of Changes in Equity” and “Cash Flow Statement”. Thus, the

approval of financial statements i3 deficient 1o that extent.

Mo commend was made by the Stautory Auditors regarding this although they have

expressed opinion on the entire set of [nd AS financial statements

For and on Behall of
Comptroller and Auditor General IJI!IIIHI

|
Date: 15.00.2024 | l
Flace: New Delhi &pJ ’—T
(Hajiv Kumar Pandey)
Director General of Audit
(Cenmtral Expenditure), New Delhi
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ANNEXURE-A

Ongoing CSR proposals sanctioned in FY 2023-24

:o ?:sr:i‘:u‘:zthe Purpose/Title of Research Project :;ZJteCt :&pc:‘:xf d
Exploring Altered Gene Expression Signatures
1 AIIMS in children with developmental epileptic 59.60 59.60
GUWAHATI encephalopathy using NanoString'snCounter ’ ’
Technology
T IndoU_LI: An Urb_an Livability Ind_ex for
2 GANDHINAGAR Sus_tama_b_le Environmental Monitoring of 42.00 42.00
Indian Cities
T :Platelet Rich"PIasma ( P_RP) based allogenic
3 HYDERABAD off—ti'_\e—s_helf _cosmeceutlca_l pt,oduct for 49.90 49.90
chronic/diabetic wound healing”.
Development of innovative surface treatment
4 IIT INDORE and gra_phene -based na_nocoating/_ﬁlm 59.93 59.93
strategies for the preservation of tangible
cultural heritage in India
5 IIT MADRAS Aljti—ca!ncer drug Ca'mptothecin via Novel 58.97 58.97
Microbial Fermentation Route
Sustainable recycling of critical metal from
6 IIT ROORKEE discarded mobile devices 46.20 46.20
AIIMS NCI Life Course Ap proach to Women’s Health: A
7 sustainable strategy for effective cancer 59.46 59.46
JHAJIJAR SO -
prevention in India.
NIT Smart and Effective IoT and GNSS
8 Technology based Tea farming and Tourism 48.43 48.43
JAMSHEDPUR .
for Tea Community Development
9 NIT Study of drainage pattern in srinagargarhwal 38.88 38.88
UTTARAKHAND | city and its influence on hill slope stability ) )
Cardiometabolic risk in PCOS:Role of SNPs,
10 gll\:lll\\,I/EgSRIATg nguro—i_mmuno—endocrine axis and gut 48.90 48.90
microbiota.
11 | IIIT LUCKNOW | Vidya samriddhi initiative 43.90 43.90
Promoting science education in rural western
12 | IIT JODHPUR Rajasthan through laboratory based hands -on | 68.40 68.40
activities and outside classroom learning.
Designing Safe and Independent Hybrid
13 | SPA BHOPAL (battery & manual) Stair-climbing Wheelchair | 50.05 50.05
for Person with Locomotor Disability
Effect of Millet Supplementation On
Qljgl_AIEH Anthropometric Indices, Biochemical,
14 Inflammatory and Body Composition Indices 41.79 41.79
UNIVERSITY . - ’ .
(AMU) in Patients W|_th Pred iabetes and Type 2
Diabetes Mellitus.
15 | IISER PUNE De\_/eloping_ a si_mpl_e, low -cost bioassay kit to 51.78 51.78
estimate vitamins in food
Evaluating the Socio -Economic Impact
16 | 1IM SIRMAUR ofVillage Tour.ism on Comr_nunity _ 18.00 18.00
Development:A Comparati ve Analysis of
Diverse Villages ofHimanchal Pradesh
Development of multifunctional MXene based
drug delivery system for efficient delivery of
17 | IIT PALAKKAD cyclic AMP to the human dendritic cells 41.59 41.59
towards the treatment of inflammatory
diseases
18 NAGALAND “Slope stability evaluation of AH 1 for the 30.22 30.22
UNIVERSITY socioeconomic development of NE India”. ' '

Board vide First Board meeting for F.Y. 2023-24 dated 01.09.2023 had approved
the CSR expenditure budget of Rs. 858.00 Lakhs for F.Y. 2023-24. The Committee
approved above project nos. 1 to 18 for an amount of Rs. 858.00 Lakhs.
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JAIN ANKIT & ASSOCIATES ;" saze
Company Secretary

402, OKAY PFLUS DP METRDO, NEW SANGANER ROAD, JAIPUR

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
(CIN- U74999KA2017NPL103474)
STOCK EXCHANGE TOWERS, No. 51 1st FLOOR,
1st CROSS, JCROAD BANGALORE URBAN BANGALORE KA560027.
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY(hereinafter called
the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our Opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in my/our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31.03.2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on
31.03.2024 according to the provisions of:

(i) TheCompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;.

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; (Not
applicable to the company during the reporting period).

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; (Not applicable to

the company during the reporting period).
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JAIN ANKIT & ASSOCIATES S 00s805 oom
Company Secretary

402, OKAY PFLUS DP METRDO, NEW SANGANER ROAD, JAIPUR

(iv)

(v)

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings; (Not
applicable to the company during the reporting period).

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the company during the reporting period).

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(Notapplicable tothe company during the reporting period).

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the company during the reporting period).

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the company during the reporting
period).

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the company during the reporting period).

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the
company during the reporting period).

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not
applicable to the company during the reporting period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
applicable tothe company during the reporting period).

Other laws specifically applicable to the company as identified by me and informed to me by the

management of company :-

1. Prudential Norms & guidelinesissued by the Reserve Bank of India

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standardsissued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
b) The Company has notenteredinto Listing Agreements with any Stock Exchanges;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried outin

23



ff‘- 1) Higher Education Financing Agency Annual Report 2023-2024

JAIN ANKIT & ASSOCIATES 0000t o
Company Secretary

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at

the meeting.

As per the minutes book of the company majority decision is carried through while the dissenting

members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has not made any right issue to its existing

share holders.

Ourreportisto be read along with the representations disclosed in Annexure A

Date : 09.08.2024 For JAIN ANKIT & ASSOCIATES
Place : JAIPUR Company Secretary

FCS ANKIT JAIN
M.No- F10305

CP No -13503
UDIN :- FO10305F000936164
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Annexure A - Responsibility Statement
To,
The Members,
HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
(CIN-U74999KA2017NPL103474)
STOCK EXCHANGE TOWERS, No. 51 1st FLOOR,
1st CROSS, JCROAD BANGALORE URBAN BANGALORE KA 560027.

Ourreportistobereadalong with the following:

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain responsible assurance
about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,

we follow provide a responsible basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to verification of procedures on test

basis.

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the

Date : 09.08.2024 For JAIN ANKIT & ASSOCIATES
Place : JAIPUR Company Secretary

FCS ANKIT JAIN
M.No- F10305

CP No -13503
UDIN :- FO10305F000936164
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'Poornima’, lind Floor, 25, State Bank Road,
Bangalore - 560 001. Karnataka, India.

K P RAD K VISWANATH
MOHAN LAY P, RAVINDRANATH 3

E-mail nfogpracco.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of HIGHER EDUCATION
FINANCING AGENCY (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheel as at 31
March 2024, the Statement of Income and Expenditure (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of alfairs of the Company as al March 31, 2024, its excess of Income
over expenditure, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitics for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Inslitute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion,

Branches

Hyderabad ; 3rd Floor, D1, 6-3-652, Kautilya, Somajiguda, Hyderabad - 500 0D82. Ph.: 040-23322310
Mysore : 74, 2rid Main, First Stage, Vijayanagar, Mysore - 570 017, Ph.: 0821-4271908

Chennai : Flat 2-A, Second Floor, Shruthi 37, Bth Cross Street, Shastrinagar, Adayar, Chennai - 500 020. Ph.: 044- 24903137 / 45511564
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K.P. RAO & CO.

CHARTERFDACCOINTA

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to:

e Note no. 18 to the financial statements which includes CSR expenditure
provision for the year amounling to Rs.858 crore, out of which the whole
amount is kept unspent and has been set apart in a separate bank account
within the stipulated time period.

¢ Note no. 5 & 17 to the financial statements states thal provision on standard
assets is calculated as per Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IRACI) 0.4% on standard assets i.e., Rs 30.66 crore. Whereas the
Company estimates the impairment loss allowance of Rs 9.22 crore which is
charged to Statement of Income and Expenditure and balance shown as an
Impairment Reserve which is forming part of the Other Equity.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Réport and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other Information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement ol Lhis other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard,

(
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Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5} of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including Other Comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes in
Fquity of the company in accordance with the accounting principles pgenerally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards(Ind As) prescribed
under Section 133 of the companies Act, read with Rules specified in the companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended from time to time. This
responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the companies Act 2013, for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimales that arcreasonableand prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating  effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
staterments that give a lrue and fair view and are (ree from material misstalement,
whether due to fraud or crror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either inlends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but lo do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statementls as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we excreise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audil. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectivencss of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
lo cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.
f’-_.l: IS s
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We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those mallers Lthat were of most significance in the audil of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L. As the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order”) issued by the
central government in terms of section 143(11) of the said Companies Acl,
2013 are not applicable to the company as it is registered under section 8 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and hence, the requirements of disclosure under the
said order does not arise,

-1I As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b} Inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Income and Expenditure including Other
Comprchensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statement comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule specified in the Companies (Indian accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended.
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e) In terms of circular No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, the Company being Government
Company, is exempt from the provisions of section 164(2) of the Act regarding
disqualification of Directors,

[) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “ Annexure A.”

+ g} The provisions of section 197 of the Act does not apply to the Company, hence

reporting under Section 143(3)(g) is not required.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Apditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. As explained by the management, the Cmnp.:anj does not have any pending
litigations as at 315 march 2024 which has an impact on its financial position in
its financial statements.

ii. As explained b}' the management, The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any malerial
foreseeable losses.

iii.  Asexplained by the managemenl, there were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protecion Fund by the
company.

iv.  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief

that no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
lo or in any other person(s) or . entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries') or-provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

v.  The Management has represented, thal, to the best of its knowledge and belief
that no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign  entities ("Funding Parties"), with the

BEHGALLRU
FRHGI33S
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understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audil procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circaumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule T1(e) contain any material mis-statement. '

The company has neither declared nor paid interim dividend or final dividend
during the year. Therefore, reporting under Rule 11(f) of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a fealure
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature

being tampered with.

As required by Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to
additional reporting on the directions issued by the C&AG has been annexed to
this report an "Annexure B" as part of the Independent Auditors Report.

For K. P. Rao & Co
Chartered Accounlants

irm’s Registration No. 0031355
onha i _ N
T REHCALLRY \ v |
Prashanth S FRN.CI3135S /|
Partner

Membership No. 228407

UDIN:24228407BKFY KF5382

Place: Bengaluru

Date:

30t May 2024
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Higher
Education Financing Agency (“the Section 8 Company”) as of 31st March, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial, reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI},

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an andit of internal financial controls, both applicable in an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

33

Annual Report 2023-2024



Higher Education Financing Agency Annual Report 2023-2024

K. P. RAO

11

& CO).

I EF R i) i Jl % 1 AN

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy ol the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness, Our audit of financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls under financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial report.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparalion of financial stalements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes these policies and procedures that:

i.  pertain Lo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods arc subject to the risk that the internal financial control
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over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Epinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate mternal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating efféctively as at 31st March, 2024, based on
the internal control over financial position established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. '

For K. P, Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0031355

Prashanth S
Partner
Membership No. 228407

UDIN: 24228407 BKFYKF3382

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 30t May 2024
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Annexure B the Independent Auditors' Report
Compliance Report on the direction issued by C&AG under Sub section 5 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“"the Act”)

i. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting

transactions through IT system? If yes, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT system on the Integrity of the accounts along
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated,
Yes, the Company has system in place to process all the accounting, transactions
through IT system and as such we have not come across cases of processing of
accounting transactions outside 1T system and hence comments, on the implication
and its financial impact, if any the integrity of the accounts does not arisc.

ii. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write
off of debts/floans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the
company's Inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.
No instances of restructuring of an existing loan in case of waiver / write off of
debts/loans/interest etc, were found during the year or as at the balance sheet date
and hence, comments on the financial impact do not arise, '

ili. ~Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/ state
agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation.

Based on the verification of the books of accounts, we have not found any
transactions received/ receivable for specific schemes from central / state agencies.
Hence question of deviation is nolt applicable,

For K. P. Rao & Co
Chartered Accountants
irm's Registration No. 0031355

kol

e — e —

Prashanth §
Partner
Membership No. 228407

UDIN; 24228407BKFYKF3382

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 301 May 2024
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'‘Poornima’, lind Floor, 25, Stale Bank Road,
Bangalore - 560 001. Kamataka, India.

MON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES AUDITOR'S ADDITIONAL REPORT

fo,

Board of Direcios

Higher Education Finaning, Apeecy
Spiick Euclumpge Towts,

BaonS1, Fel Flosor, 14 Cross,

1T Road, Bempalum, Kamataka=560027

This report is Bsuad in socondence with the requirements. of Non-Hanking  Financial
Conpanies Auditor's Report {Reserve Bank) Diroctions, 3006 ("Para A) and HC7)

We have audibed the accompanying financial slatenents of Higher Education Fianeing
Apency (hercinafler refireed b as the “Companmy” ) comprising Balamoe Sheet as at March 1,
2024, thee relabed Staseremt of Profit and Loss {includimg Oty Comprehemsiee Inoomss), the
Sttt ol Chumges. in Fauity and Cash Flow Statement for the vear endind on that date.

Management's responsibility for the Finenclal Statements

The Comparny's Board of Dipectors |s nesponsible for the matbers stabed in Section T3 5) of the
Companies Ack 2005 " Act™) with respeoct to the preparation of these standalons: financial
shabensonts o give a troe and fair view of the financal position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in scosrdinoe wilh B scoouming princphs: generally acoepiod
i Inclia, including the Indian acominling standasds spocified ander Section 133 of the At
nead with Companies {Indian Accounting Standands Rules), 2015, as amersded. This
responsibility alse inchudes maintenance of adequate scocanting records in accondance wilth
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assees of the Company and lor preventing
and detecting Frambs amd siher regulanities; selection and applacation of appropriate
acenunting policies; making dgnsnis and cstimabes that are reasonable and pradent; and
alesipn, implementation and maintenanoe of sbegquate ivierns] inancial controls, relevant g
thee prepasistion and presentation of the financial staberments that give a tree and fair view and
ane free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud of enmos,

The Management |s also resporeible for compliance with the Reserve Bank of India
fheretnalier referred 1o as “RB or “Hank™) Act, 194 and other relevant RBL cireulars and
guidelipns apphicable to Non-Banking Financial Companics, as amendisd from ime to dme,
andd for providing all the nequined inkermation o REL

Auditor’s Responsibil ity

Purssant bo the raquireements of NoneBanking Financal Companies Auditor’s
{Reserve Bank) directions, 2016 as consol icdabesd in KBE master ciroular {the "THrections”

P ey A Phose G - FSSETIEN | PSRN
LA i 5 EARIAANTH Fas o) - PS4
WA AT P RAVRIDRAMATH Eomasl ool (i

Chennal 1 Flak 3-A, Second Flooe, Shiathi 17, Rith Crona Streed, Shairinagar. Adayar,

Branchay

Hyderabad ; 3rd Floor. 01, 6-3-852, Kautly
Miysore T4, Jed Main, Hy:ﬂagr.w.wrw-imnﬂ Ph,: CRT1-427 V908
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our responsibility ko examine the audited books and records of Bw Company for B year
ended 3= March 2024 and repoet on the matters specified in the Directions (o the exbent
applicable fo the Company.

We conducted our examinabion in accordance with the Guidanoe Nobe on Reports o
Certificates. for Special Porposes. issied by the Bstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The Guidance Mote requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of
EH'H-EGMH' thi: Institule of Charersl Accountants of India,

We have complied with the melevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Cuality
Control (S0C) 1, Quality Control for Firns that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assuranoe and Kelaled Services Engoagemscehils.

Opinion

Mased o owir exambneation of the audited books ad onds of the Company for the yoar
ended 31+ March 2024 as proshsosd for our examination and the information and explanations
given to s, we report that:

1. The Company is engaged in the business of non-banking fimancial institution and has
obtained a cortificate of registration (Col) no02 00289 dated 21% November 207 from the
Bank's Department of Non-Banking Supervision, Bengahsru Begional Office. The Company
is entithed fo continue bo lold such CoR in terms of s asset income pattern as on March 3,
. 1.0

2 The Company is meeting the requined petowned funds requinement as Laid down in Masber
Direction-Mon-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Mon-Deposil taking
Company ansd Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank] Directions, 2006,

1. The company is registered as nom-deposit accepting Loan Company with REL The Board of
Directors of the Company have passed a mesodution in its meeting held on 15 April 2023 for
nof-accephatcs of puldic deposits during Y 2023-24.

4. The Company has nol accepied any puldic deposits during the fimancial year 2023-24.

5. The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating o income necognition,
Indian accounting standards, asset classification and provisioning, for bad and doabiful debts
as applicable to it in terms of Non-Banking Financial Company-Systemically Important Mom-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve tank) [Hrections, 2016

&, As per information and explanation given o us, the quarterly statement of capital funds,
visk assets | exposures and risk asset ratio (IS - 3) has been filesd by the company for all
the quarters of FY 202324 based on provisional financial nesults of respective quarters, drawn

Continuation Shesl
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Contnuation Sheet

on the date of filing with in the stipulated period including CRAR in compliance with KBl
HOFmS.

The annual statement of capital funds, risk assets/ exposure and risk asset ratio DNBES-(3
roturns a5 on st March 2024 has been filed by the company on 7th June 2024 on the basis on
the audited financial resulks,

Restriction on Lsg

1. Our obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate from, and our
responsibility and liability are in no way changed by, any other role we may have (or
may have had) as auditors of the Company or otherwise. Nothing sald in this nepart,
nor anything said or done in the course of or in connection with the services that are
the subject of this report, will extend any duty of care wio may have in our capacity as
auditors of any financial statements of the Company.

2 ‘This report is issued pursuant to our obligations under the Directions bo submil a
repoart on additional matters as stated in the Directions, to the Board of Directors of the
Company and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose.
Accordingly, we do not accept o assume any duty or lability for any other purpose
or to any other party to whom our report s shown or into whose hands it may come
withowt our pricr consent in writing.

For K " Bao & Co
Chartered Acoountants
‘s Hegistration Mo, 0031355
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CIN U740001KA20 1 7NPL 1034 74
Compuny / LLP Nome HIGHER E‘BUEATIHN FINANCING AGENCY
e RoC-Bangalare
Reglitration Numbar 103474 =
Company Cate ry Company limited by Shares
mpany Subcategary Union Govt company
Class of Company Private
Authorised Capital (Ra) 1,00,00.00,00,000 |
[Paid up Capital (Rs) 52.,93,75,00,000
Number of Members (Applicabls in case of company
without Share Capital) N ¥
Dats of Incorporation 31-05-2017
Stock Exchange Towers, No, 51, 1st Floor, 1st
Regiaterad Addross Crosa, J € Road, Bengaluru, Karnataka, India -
560027
Email ID inlogtheln.co.m
Whathar Listsd or not Uniisted
Date of lnat AGM 17-11-2023
Date of Balanocs "“'L_ 31-03-2024
Company Status (for E-Filing) Active
Charges
Assets under churge Charge Ameunt Date of Creation Date of Status
Hoolk Debis E.60.00,00,000 | 02-08.-30243] & Gpen
ool Debis 20.00,00,00,000 053020 3 Cloned
Hoolt debia; Floating charge 3,00,00,00,000 T6-13-3020 E Closed |
[Hoalk debia 17,00,00,00,000 20-1 22021 Closed
Directors/ atery Details
DIN/PAN ame Haogin date End date
i SANJAY MURTHY 7y
03532374 KONDRU 01-10-2021 -
RISHIKESHA
OO0GA0LT THIRUVENKATA 12-06-2017
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09322823 ASHOK CHANDRA 18-10-2023
EYTPSO366E RAHUL SAINI 01-02-2023 =
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HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
(CIM:UTA900RA20 T TNIPLIOS4T4)

(A Non PRanking Finanaial Company Licensed under Section & of the Com panies Act,2013)
[Privasie Limite] & Qovernment Company]

(Al nmounts are i crore of lidion Rupees, unless ot horwise stated)

BALANCE SHEET A8 AT MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars Note Ne. As at 31.03.3024 | As at 31.03,2023
1 ASBETS
{1} [Finanoial Assots
{m) Cash and Cash Equivalenta 3 166.27 734,39
() Bank Balanee other than (a) above 4 = .
{g) |Loans 5 7,555.32 G,15849.30
e} |Other Financial Asseis G 101,67 110.4:2
Total Financial Asssts 7,824,246 7,004.20
{Z) |Non-financial Aznets
[E] Current Tax Ansets (Net) 1 19,07 11.33
(b |Property, Plant and Equipmernt . g
e} Other Non-Financial Assets . ]
Total Non-Finanelal Asseta 19.97 11,33
Total Asscta 7,846,23 7,015.53
II |[LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1} |Financial Linbilities
[f] Payahles H
(I Trade Paynbles
(1) total suraranding diea of inlero enterprises and . -
small enterpriscs
(H} voral outatanding dues of crediiors ather than » :
micra enterprises und amall enterprises 3373 4142
{b)  |Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) a9 475.00 ’
() |Other Fingnecial Linbilites n 11.33 A5
Total Finanoial Liabilities 5320.06 a5.88
(2] |Non-Financial Liabilitles
(n) [Contingent Provisions Agninsl Standord Assets 11 i i
[[53] Other Non=Financial Linbilities 13 4,82 312
Total Non-Financial Lianbilition 4,82 a.12
(3) |Bquity
{a) |Equity Share Capitnl 13(m) 5,393.75 5,203,758
[[]] Other Equity 13({B) 2,027.60 1.6R2.78
Total Equity 7,321.35 6,076,.53
Total Liabilities and Equity 7;846.23 7,015.53

The aocompnnying notes (1-46) are mi integral pact of the fnancinl statemenis,

lii Terms ol our teport attached
For K.P.RAO & CO,

Chartersd Acocounianis

Flim's HL‘RIWH Mo, 0031358

sPrashanth §

Partrier

M. No.« 228407

Plooce: Her ru
Tanne: 3:,’:::7‘1“1!’

{ mencaLunu Y vl
FRN.0031355 =

= ST A

EYTIS9.3661%
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Maninging Director & CLO
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HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
[CITNU7A009KAZD I TNIL 103474

A Nai Banking Financial Company Licensed under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013
[Private Limited & Government Company|

[AN amoiints are i crore of Indian Hupees, unless otherwise sioted)
BETATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Nots | For the year snded | For the year ended
Partloulars No. 31,00,2024 31,03.2023
Ineams @
{1} |Revenue from Op ns
Interest [ncame 14 396 .67 Ad5.48
Total Revenue from Operations 396.67 448.48
{Ifj |Other Incoma 15 - 0.33
{111} |Total Incams {1+11) 396.67 44!,!1
{IV) |Empenditure
() |Finanees Coats 16 4.03 .64
(b} |Impairment on Finanelal Instraments 17 2,19 BT
(vl |Emploves Benefits Expenses " a
{d) [Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment = -
) |Management Vees 31.23 20,10
i |CBR Expenditure 18 8O H.03
(h) |Others Expenacs 18 582 5.;’
Total Exponsss (IV) B1.85 48.8
(V] |[Emcess of Income aver Expenditure|{Burplus) bafors Excaptional :
Ttems and Tax ([I- IV A44.82 07 246
(Vl) |Exeeptional itema - B
[V11) |Burplus Bafora Tax (V -VI | 34482 7.26 |
{VIIl) | Tax Expenas|
{1) Current Tax 21 o 5
{2) Deferred Tax - -
{IX) |Escess of Income over Expenditure(Surplus) from continuing s -
operations (VI - VII)
(X} |Excess of Inooms over Expanditurs(SBurplus) from discentinued " -
operations
{XI} |Tax Expense of discontinued operations i
(%11} |Excess of Income over Expenditure(Burplus) from discontinued . E
apsrations (Alter tax) (X - XI)
(XI11) |Excess of Inceme aver Expenditura{Surpius) for the yvear s
: » (Burplus) year (VI a44.82 097.26
(XIV) |Other Comprahensivs Incoms
(i} Teema that will not be reclassified to Surplus or Deficit - -
(if) Incame 1ax relating o items that will not be eelassiiied w Surplus
or Defieit " 4
Other Comprehensiva I - =
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (B3 X) Ad4.83 497 346 |
{Compriaing Burplus and other Comprehensive income for the year)
(XV) |Earnings per Equity S8hare 19
Banic (k) 0.65 0,75
Diluted (Ra.) 0.65 0.75

The aecain panying notos (1-405) are an iniegral part of the finaneinl stalements.

Ini terinin of ouf feport altached.
For K.P.RAQ & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Partner
M, MNo.- 228407

Place: Denpgalupu
Date: 3"’ }'1.”_!,'

h 8 uu e 'rnqpmu

Pd“'(.r' { Managing Divecior & CEO
; i rﬂq 10118048
o [ BENGALIRY YT 5T
FRN003134 | - *Rahul Saint
55 ohlet Minanelnl Ofeer
<L/ BYTPBOIGGE

Sepaecc
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HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY

[CIN:UT490909KA20 1 TNPL103474)

1A Non Banking Finaneial Company Licensed under Section 8 of the Companies Act,2013)
|Private Limited & Government Company|

(All amounts are in crove of Indlan Rupees, unless otherwise stoted)

CABH FLOW BTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

For the year éndad For the year ended
rl A 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activitiea
Net Surplus before Taxation 344,82 au7, 26
Adjustments for;
Interest Income rom Banks {16.51) (43.54)
Finanee Cosls 4,003 0.64
Impuirment on Financial Instruments 2,19 547
Operating Surplus before working capital changes 334.53 356,83
Changes in Working Capital;
{Increass) / Decrease in Other Non-Financial Asseis i a
(Tnerease)/ Decrease in Other Finoneinl Assets 343 (7.97)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans {1398.132) (1026.31)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 2,30 3.06
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 6.88 1.05
Increnss/(Decrease) Provialons - A
Increase/(Decrense) In Other Non-Financinl Liabilities 1.70 0.47
Cash generated from Operations {1049,28) (6BY.RT)
Net Income Taxes Paid B.65 (2.81)
HNet oash generated from operating activities - A {1057,93 (672 68)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Bank Balances not considered ns Cash and Cash Equivalent 0,00 0.00
Interest Received z1.84 3B.21
Neot Cash from Investing Activities:B 21.84 38.21
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceed (rom Term Loan 500.00 -
Repayment of Term Loun (25.00) (128257
Proceeds rom issue of Equily Share e =
Share premium on Equity Shares Allotted - -
Finance Cosl Paid (#.03) 0,64
Net Cash raised in Financing Activities-C 470.97 (1283.21
Het Ingrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (565,12) {1917.68)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 734,39 2652.07
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 169.27 734,39
The accompanying notes (1-46) are an integral part of the financial statementis,
Iy terms of our report attached, For sind on behall of the Board of
For K.P.RAO & CO. HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY

hartered Accountants Ly

rm's Repigglation No, 0031355 Jl,uf- &—,—:-
O‘Q\ﬂ" " 7 -;;I"ﬂ e é#’

8 aRammad Thophic K. SBanjay Murthy

Partner Munuging Director & CEQ Chatrman
M. No.= 228407 l'llN?l)l 18049 DIN-3532374
)i I 3
{ Yoube= (P’
ul Baini m
Place: Hengnluru Chiel Finaneial Officer Company Secratary
Date: ..5\,,“ Tj,bl‘f EYTPEG366E DWMPS20030
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HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
[CINUTAFRAN T TRPLI N34T 4)

(A Mo Baking Financial Compiany Lioensed under Section & of the Companies Act,2013)

[Privite Limited & Qovernment Company]

(AN dmntd e o crore of Indian Bupees, unless oflinrwise siated)

BTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIT 21, 2024

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

1. Current Reporting Period
Balance at the beginning of the current Changes in Restated Changes in Balance at
reporting periad Equity S8hare |balance at the |oquity share  |the end of the

Capital due to |beglaning of |capital during |current

prior period  |the current the current reporting

errors reporting yoar period

period
5,203.78 = - - 5,293.75

2. Previous Reporting Period
Balance at the beginning of the curront Changes in Reatated Changes in Balance at
reporting pericd Equity Share |balance at the |equity share the end of the

Capital due to |beginning of  |eapital durlng |ourrent

prior poriod  |the current the eurrant roporting

BEFOEE roporting yenr periad

pariod
5§,393.76 - - . 5,293.78
DL.OTHER EQUITY
lpllllﬂnﬂlﬂbn Reserves and Surplus
Particulars hn::,“ Htatutory Impairment Retained Total
Allotment Reserven Reserve Earnings
Balance al the beginning of the reporting peving .
g HERTR Pk 336.55 19,30 1,326.84 1,682.78

Burplus for the year - Ada,H2 344 43
Other comprehensive income for the year [net
of ) )
Transfer 1o special reserve u/s 45 1C of the RBI
Act, 1934 il (6,96
Tranafer o Impairment Kessrve = 2.05 {2.08)
Balance at the end of the reporting period - 408,51 21.44 1,600.65 2027.60

?hi' accompanying notes (L-46) are an integrl part of the finencinl statemenis.

In terms of our repart anachesl
For K.P.RAO & CO.

Uhaitered Avoosinianis

rm's Kegistrition No. 0011358

Prashanth 8
[ T C—

M. No.- 228407

Place l!rnnnru'u

Ptte: Eglni 101Y

usnmum -

FRN-0031355

Far mnd o Beball of the Doaed of
HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY

3

Managing Director f& CEQ

(] (HII 18040
wff"’
Rakul Saini

Chiel Fiiaiudal Clicer

EXTPSS9I6HIE
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Compuny Secretary
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2.1

2.2

b)

HIUHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGRNOY

TN U T 00G 1L A0 THPL T TA)

(A Mon o Fivincl Corpiany Ligensod umidor Seolon 4 of (he Comipaiies Ao, 200 3

Privare Limited M Governmien! Coniparniy|

CORFORATE INFORMATION

HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AQGENCY{Referrod as HEFA or the Company) has been incorporaied os o Privaie
limited company under Scotion 8 of the Compnies Act, 2013 & Government Company ns o Joint Venture Compnny of
Minisiry of Educarion (MOE) and Canara Hank, pursuani io Ceriificate of Incorporation issucd by the Registrar of
Companios dotod 318t May 2017 (CINUTA909KA201 7NIML1O3474) with an object of financing lndin's higher edueation
institutions,

HEFA in enguged in praviding timely finance al eompetilive intereni raies for cuplial asseis creation in India’s higher
edicntional insliiuiwene Al prosent, the company is Tuietionally mannged by Canarg Hank,

HEFA would incentivisg bottor internal resource generation and al the same time allow substantial investmenis through
marker borrowings that can be repaicd over o longer periad.

The Company hus received it Liconce no, 109468 dated 30th May 2017 under Section 8 of Companies Act, 2013,

The Company has also been granted Fegistration under Seation 12AR of the lneome Tox Acl, 1961 an s Public
Charitable Company with effect froim 2nd February 2008 and 8 renewal application made on 10.03,2022 has been
upproved and valid tll AY 2026-27.

The Company har abtained registration with Reserve Bank of Indin as o “Non-deposit inlking non-saystemicnlly importani
NBIFC fe. (Lo, NOFC-NO-Type 11) vide COR No. 02.00280 daled 21st November, 2017 for the purpose of carvying oul
Non Bunking Finance business, Subsequently, the status of the Compuny has boen changed from ‘Not Aceepting Public
Deposits and Nen Syatemically Important Non=Ranking Financial Company (NBFC-ND=TY ' 1)* in 'Not Accepting Public
Deposits And Systemically Important Non-Hunking Finaneial Company (NBFC-NI3-81)* on crossing of assct sizn of s,
BO0 crove ua on 20ih December, 2018,

The company's registered office (5w 1al Floor Stock lxchange Towar No.51 1sl Cross J, C.Rond Bangniore -560027
Karnntaka

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING FOLIOIES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL BETATEMENTS

Basis of Proyp ion of T ial Btatements

The linuncial sintements of the company have been prepared in aecordance with Indian Aceounting Standards (Ind AS)
naotifiod under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standords) Bules, 2015 jus amended (rom fime to Hme), The lnaneial
ulutomienie have been prepared under the himtorien]l coni convention, as modifled by the application of fair value
measurements roquined or allowed by relevant Accounting Standards, Accounting policies have been conaisiently
applied to all prriads presented, unless otherwise atined

The Company has adopted Indisn Accounting Standards (*lnd AS%) with offeci from 1 April, 20018 and the effective dare
of transition being 31 May, 2017, Acoordingly, the above finuncial stulements have boon proparad 0 acoordanos with
the Indinn Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companios Act, 2013 read with relevant rules
issued thereunder nnd other necounting principles generally accepted n lndia mainly considering the Musior Directions
inruod by the Reserve Bk of ndin (RBEY) as applicable to Non-Nanking Finanee Companies = NiD-8i

The prepatution af financial statements regquires the use of certain eriticnl secounting estimaies wnd assumprions that
affect the reporied nmounts of aesetd, lHabllites, reveinves aid expenses ol the disclosed amount of contingent
labiliiles. Areis invelving o higher doproe of judgement or complexity, or arens where assumptions are significant io the
Company are discussed in Nole 2.3 - Matorial aooounting judgements, eatimates and aesumptions,

The finnncinl stalemaents are presentod in Indian Bupees (INK]) and all values are rounded o the neareat laca, sxcept
whien otheirwisge lndicated.

Presentation of Plaanelal Btatements

These financial statements include the Balance Sheet, the Siatement of Chanpges in Bguity, the Siatement of lnoome
and Expenditure, the SBmntement of Cash flows and Notes, comprising o suionoey of matercial neeouniing policles anid
other explanatory information and compartive information in reapect of the preceding veanr, The Hnlnnee Sheet and ihe
Hiptomoent of Income and Expenditure are prepored and presented in the formal preseribed i the Sehedules 1 to the
Companics Aol 2013 ("the Acr®). The atatement af Cash Flow has been prepored and presented an per the requirements
ol Ind-A% ¥ “Sintement of Cash flowa”™. The disclosure requirements with respect to iteis in the Baloners Sheet and
Statement of Income and Expenditure, as presceibod i the Schedule 11 to the Aer, are presented by way of notes
lorming purt eof accounts along with the other notes required 1o be disclosed under the notfied Accounting Standard.

Other Comprehenslve lncome Tor the period 2023-24 s conaldered 1o be Nil us no such irenesctions under the
Compiny complying with Ind A8 provisions for tho proparation of financiel sinlements have taken place.

BENGALLRU
FRN:0031355
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2.3 M iml ing Policles, Judgements, Estlmates and Assumptions

)

b

%)

b

Uso of Estimates

The prepoartion of fnnnein] stntemenis in conlormity with indnn Aceounting Standard roguires Management to make
oEtimatos wnd assumptions that affeor the reported amounta of Asscts and Habilities and disclosure of contingent
Anncta and liabilitlea al the date of the Toaneia] strdements and the resulis of operations during the reporting period,
Although thass astimates are bassd upon MabiagenienUs best kiowledge of curfentl events and netions, aeliin fesiilia
iy differ from these estimaios,

Hovonue Rocognition
Revenue is recogniscd based on the natire of activity when conaideration enn be renmonably monsured and there exiaia
reasanabln certainty of its recovery, Revenue s measured il the Tnir sidue of the consideration received o reeeivable.

Incams from Operations

The Compuiny derives revenue primarily Fom Nninchil assiatance [oF crention of cducational infrastructure and B&D in
India‘s promior educational institutions, Intorost will ho accried on monihly basis ns inierest s padd Dy (e Minisiey of
Edugation which will be ealeulated an the basis of outsinnding balonee. Interest Income for all linaneiol instroamenis

are coleulaied ai pross carrying amouni, nre recognised In interest income as interest on deposits with banks and
Interest on Loan in the Statement of Income and Itxpﬂndlrul'r' unlng effective rate of Intereat 15112y

Othar Incoma

In oase of athor Inooame, revenue s reoognisEed duving (he period i which the seivices e fendered. lnleresl inconie &
recognized of g lime proporiion basis, inking inio ncocouni ithe nmount i sbanding and st an efoctve Interesl mate, -
npplica bl

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and eash oquivalenia comprise (he net amount of short-term, highly lguid Invesunents that arve preadily
convertible to Known amounts of cash (short-lerm deposita with an ariginal maturity of throe months or less) and are
subjoct to an nsignificant rigk of changs in value, chegues on bind and bilances with badils, They are held for (e
purposes of fmeeting shori-lerm cash commitments (eather than for investment or other purposes), For the purposn of
ithe winioment of onsh Nows, cnsh and onsh egquivalents conalsl of cash and shore erm deposios, as defined above.

Caah Flow Statemant
Zamh Nows are reported usingg the indirect method, whereby surplus foe the vear is adjusted (or the elfecis of
iranmactions of u non-cash nature, any deforrals or acoruals of past or faare operiling cash receipts o pryments and

item of income or expenses associnied with inveating or fnaneing caah fows. The carb dows from sperating, investing
and financing acitivities of the Company nre sepregated

Froparty, Flant and Equipmant (PPE)

PP s recognized when it is probable that future coonemic benefits aesocinted with the item will Tow o the Company
anidl the com of the e can have incanuied relinbly, PPE (8 stated ot original cost net of ax/duty crodits avadled, il any,
s necumulnted |l|'prw'lnllnr| and cumulative impairment, Cosr compriges the puichase prlce and any attriburable
couts of bringing the assel W its working condition for iis intended Use as estimated by the managemant. Any irade
taeounis and rebaios are deducied in arciving of the purechase price. PRE ool reaidy Tor the intended use, on the dote of
thie Riilisnoe Sheet are ilisclosed i “Ciapinnl Worlk=n- Mogress”.

Intangibla Assots

Intangibile Asacte aro snted o oviginal cost el of s /duly evedits availed, iF any, less aecamualabed aimoartisation and
cuimiilative impaitment, Intanglble Arscis are recognised when (s probable thai the fojure soonomic benefits that are
attribitable to the aase will Now 1o the enterprise and the costl of the nusel can be messured relinbly, Intangible Asscis
not ready for the infonded ure on the daite of the Palanon Sheeo are disclosed as “Intangible Assets dnder development”

Lenusa

The dotgrmination of whothor an agreement (8, oF contains, o lease I8 based on the subatance of the ngreeinenl al the
date ol inceplion.

L Finanes Leasas There are no Finanee lenges entersd inta by the Coinpiny,

i, Operating Louses: Leasos where the lossor offectively retaing substantially all the risks and beneflis of ownership of
the leased e are classiflicd a8 operating leises, Opernting lense fentinls/ priymenisn nre charged as nn expenne in Che
Income and Expenditure secount on o stralghi-lne basis over the lease (erm,

Provisions

Provisiona are recognisnd whon the entorprise has o prosent obligation (legnl or constraetive) o o resull of pasl evenis,

il it is probable that an outllow of ressurces embodving cconemic bonefites will be raquired to aotilo tha obligation, snd
i rellable catimate can be made of the amount of the abligation.

When the elfect ol the tme value of monoy 18 matorial, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting
the expeeied cosh Mows ol o pre-tax eale rellecting the cueeent mies spoeific (o the bability, The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the statement of Siatement of Income and Expenditure net of any reimbursement.
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Earnings Per Bhare

The Company reports s g diluied caenigs per shoee in sceordamee with Ind A8 33 on Rarnings per share, Hasio
EPE in cialeulated by dividing (ha net surplus or dafliei foe the year stivibutablo to aquity shareholders @after aneibnbils
tises) by the welghied nvetnge nimber of egquily shnves ouistonding during the year,

far the purpose of caleulating diluted camings per shaie, the nel suiplis o delieil o the year atiributable @ equity
ahnroholdern nnd the weighted average number of shares outatanding durving the yeor ave adjusted for the effvois of all
diluilve poiential equity sbsres. Dilutive potential squity sheres are desimed oonverted as of the begnniig of tie poiiod,
unlesn they hove beon imaued sl o later daie, In compuilng the dilutive camings per shaee: only potential eguity shore
thul wre dilutive nnd that sither reduces ihe sar ings por whare or inercases deficin per ahive ars ineluded,

Bogmont Reporting

Oparaling segiments are vepored (i a manned conaisient with the internal reporting provided io the chiel’ operaiing
devision malay (CODBM) The Hoard of Directors (BOD) of the Company nsscsses the financial performanco and posiiion
of the Compuny, and makes stialegic decisions. The BOD, which hus been fdentified as being the chiel operating
dvdslon maolkier, The Company (8 éngaged (n the aingle biusiness oporation of "linancial aesistance for creation of
eduontional restruoTure aid K& in indin's premior educational [nstiuiions®

Flunanclal Instriments
Financinl Amsets amd Finoncial Linbilities are recognised when the Company Deoonies o pary o the contineiiial
provisions of ihe (natrdamenis Finenein] Asests und Finaneiol Lialilivies are initially mssaured o e vialis

Finunvial Assvis
All recognincd Minancinl Asacta are subastjuently moasurod in thile entirety a o s conl.
A Flonneiol Anset shall be mensurced ol amartised cost iF both of the following oonditions are men

i. The IMinaneinl Asset {8 held within o business model whose ohjective is 16 hold Financial Asssts in order to collec
vontraciunl cash Nows and

. The contrucival teims of the Flounciel Assol give rise on specifiod daios (o cash fows ihat are solely payinenis of
principal and imeresi on the principel amount outsinnding.

Interest ihcome on Financial Assel mensurod ol amortised cost, (8 messured gt effectlve nterest rate on the gross
CHPFYINE aHioLTL

Flnanclal Llakilities

Finanoial Liahilities are sihasquently carvied al amortised cont deing the olfcctive (ntorest maothod jor trade and other

payables mariring within one year from the Balanoe S8hect deie, the cardying amaunis approgimaie (i value due o ihe
ahort maturiry of theas Inarrnimeant s

ment of

Imprirment of finncinl nesete The Company recognises impiirment allowance foF espected ofedit loss on fnnncial
unnols hold ot wmortisgd cost, The Company hise orentod o reserve as per pradentinl novins of BEL The Coipriy
recognines lous allownncos {(provisions) for expeoied oredit losses on e financial aasss (inclading non-fund espasires)
thit are mensured al wmoriised costs, The Company applios & (hree-siape appraac i 1o msasiicing expecied oredil loases
(L) Tor the linancinl maseis thnd are not messured st i vidue through Surplus or Defioin

Flonncial aaseis migroie throtgh the following three sinpes bascd an ihe change in eredin risle sinee inddal reoogniiion;
Riagge 11 12amonths BCL For esdposiifed where {here hons not beon o mignificont inoreaso in orodit visk sinos iniiial
recogiition and thal are ol ceedil impaired upoen ofiginsiion, ihe poriion of the lifedme KO, associnted with the
prabability of darill eveints acouieling within the next 12 monihs is recopinisod.

Spape 2 Lilerime BECL = notl oredin iimpaived  itor exposires where there has been o signifieant inerease in creddi risk
ainoe initial recaginition but aié ol cvsdil dmpadied; o lifetime BCL (Lo rollociing ihe remnining liictime of the inanoinl
HERDT) 8 renagnisesd,

Hingo & Lifotime KCL - ol impadred . Brposuies aie asseascd as credit impoired when one of more ovenis thet have s
doirimonial impaet on i secmoted oioee cash Dows of thisl aedel hive ocodired. Por espoaires thiat iave bocome
erodll impaivsd, o etme BOL s recognlsed and (iterest vevenue (s enleilnied by applving the ellective interest fnte (o
the amoriieed cosi (Nl of proviaion) rather than the gross carrving amount,. Determinling the siage for impairmeint Al
ench roporiing date, the Compony seseases whether there has been o slgnilican! inerense n eredil ek (or exposiiies
mines initisl recognition by comparing the riak of defaull oooureing over the sipecied e betwaon the roporilig dute aid
the ditn of inliisl recopnition, Tho Company conslders reasonabile and supportable nformation et is relevant and
wviilable without undue cont or efforl for this purpose, This noludes guantitative nnd guolitniive information nnd also,
forwardslonking nnalyveis. An oxposurs will migrate thraugh the KL stages as asset quality deteriores, 11, o
mubaequent porlod, assol guality impraves and alao reverses any previously assessed slgnifoan ncrease In credil fak
sinee origination, then the loss nllownnoes reverts from lifeiime 1001 13 omonthe 501,

Invoma Tax

Thi Company has heen Ineoiporaied a8 8 Mol for Proil Company’ under section section B of Companies Aci 2000, snd
Eranted regisiration under section 12AN0 of the lneome Tax Acl, 1UG1. The Company is prehiblied by lts ebjoctive io
CRITY 0L any aotivity on commercinl basis and thereby cluims o be eligible for o exomption.

Contingent Liabilitios and OCommitments

Contingent Linhbilities, if uny, are diaclosed in the Notes to Aecounta, Proviaisn ia made in the Aceaunta if t becomen
probahle thin an ouiflow of resouroes embodying ceonoimic beanslits will be required 1o setile the obiigation.
Commitments are futirs Habilities for contractunl expenditure.

Narrawing Cosats

Burrowing couia ure intereai and siher gorta (ineluding sxohange differsnoes valating 1o farelgn currency borrewlings 1o
the exieni thai thoy are regoarded ar an adjusimont o intaves cosis) nourrad n connectlon with the borrowing of
lundu. Oiher borrowing conts are recogniaed as an sxpenss 0 the peviod (i which they are ineuried.

Operating Cyole

Huaed on the naiure of

: iem, the Company has determined s operating cvele as 12 monihs for the purpose of
ﬂl.& tina na curreant and nofis oUPFART,

BENGALLRU
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HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
(CIN: UTAR00KA20 1 TNPLI0O3474)

(A Nom Banking Finanainl Company Licensed under Bection 8 of the Componics Act 2013)

[Private Limited & Government Company]
{All aniounis are in erore of Indian Rupecs, unless stherwive statod)

NOTES FORMING FPART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTR FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FParticulars

As at 31.03.2024

As ut 31.03.2023

"Cash and Cash equivalants
Cash on hand
Balancen with Banks

In Bavings Acoount @

In Current Account

In CAR Unapsnd Aeeaunt?

166,84 4832 70

0.00 n.oi

2.43 1.59

Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months ** = 250.00
Total = 1!!_.9’? 1]

G ineludes an amount of Bs, 8,58 crore for Y 2023-24 (He,2.86 Cr for 1Y 2022-23) relating 1o unspent amount of C8R
expenditure, subsequently tranaferred to Unapent CBR Account on 24.04,2024 {on 26,04,2023 for 1Y)

i Fund avallable in C8R Unapent Account is towards ongoing projects sanctioned under CBR by the company.

** The deposita maintained by the company with banks with eriginal maiurity of less than 3 months, On premature

withdrawal interest will be paid at rate applicable for short torm doposits,

4 BANK BALANCE OTHER TIHAN ANOVE

Particulars

As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

Eﬁﬁﬁl‘ll with ﬁl‘!ﬂll'hli Ihn'LLII‘Ily Tor more thian 3 monthe bul loss than 12

monthas
Doporits with maturity for more than 12 manths

Total

& OTHER FINANCIAL ABHETS

*Amount debiied twice by branch which has been recovered on 19th April 2024

NON-FINANCIAL ABSETH

7 CURRENT TAX ARSETSH |(NET)

Fartloulars As at 31,03,.3034 | As at 31,03,2033
Inteveat aceried on loan portfolia ([Becuiied, cotmidered jood) 100,53 105,00
Interesl aceruved on loan portiolio (Unsecured, conaidered good) - .
Interent accrued on fixed deponita and investment : .33
Other Recelvables® 1.14 z
Tatul _ 101.67 110,43 |

Partigulars

As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

Tax deducted ar source *

19,97

11,33

Tatal

19.97

11.33

* Year wise break up of TS e

As at 31.03.20324

As at 31.03.2033

2020-21 n 2,89 2,59
2022-23 @ B.44 .44

2033-24 8.64
19.97 11.a3

i ITR han been processed with refund by IT department however refund vet 1o be crédited 0 our acoount

BENGALURU
FRN:0031355
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HIGHTR RGO ATION FIRANCING AGRREY
LR AU ADO | THPL ] 04 74)

iA Mak i P ini ¢ ! i undsE Bueting 8 @f the © AL AG1H) | Liwiitad &
1ALl piisunle sv® b ovors of Iml ban Bypess, uploss siherwiss staiod

ROTER FORMING FART OF Tl FINANCIAL BYATEMENTS FOR YEAN BNDED MARCH 01, 2034
B hBANE

Py ah Desiginaled Duaigiinted al
AR Ak ErCiE S I.'hll' walun il Aok bratead lnr'vnlﬂ
aal “‘::' “.":".' Burplus ar Suat Burplus or
Defioir Bafioir
11 (L] {418 = (14204 [£1] [E]] (L] L] 6=
i {149404a)
(6]
i} Tediv Lisaing ¥ 5o 84 - 7l R i, L A LAY
(vl wipks fe Plan aml Bippment
wﬁ 2 : : i [ LIRS : : : [NTTREN
3 - - : i x : : EATEN
¥ ; - o T T R : ST
1 Memuird i niangilide Asasis
1l Hedured by TRAGIDIE ARESTE Weduied
by reveivabies and Eseoow seenint and
T anid Turni " ' 7o e - - T Bl B n, i6n.A4d LA L
il woversd by ank/devermmaont
Clusraniies . = r i s - a & s
s '
E‘ﬁﬁ&w —r EACTH - - -G ) BT e hisads
i weryd | i T -] - -
: LR MR (1) [
i i Losns in indis
il Fublic Begior - -
i} Erbeen - Highe Beliasabion
o 7 i 3 3 % i) = = & & {6 4
i e i e e e e 73 1| e e e 13
Lacnni | Vinprali iiveaal Lovin A1 [EF . v . [ 17 F 7 {1
7, - - - 7, llllﬂ @, 10%, 0% - - - o, 10%. 08
imbide lnidla - - 3 ~ - -
Taial {0 ||| « firnae . . ' = a a a .
Lesini Tinjiairireend i
5 : u a A 3 P TP s a )
FEm-unu | LTy Ve T Ras v RTTEE AT TE0ToW Raau il Dalaiee Wi 18 opeiod Joinily and 1y pelliveation of mmwnm il Uil o WRILH [oan (8 availed.

Hessivalied = Whall msan il feeeivahles of ihe L dirreders Trom (o] U Bea ol ol aeademics prooeeds colleciod Trom stiadenis sneolled wiib oan Woemenis, and jid all isisivallos
in the form of grant snd §oor sd reesterd by the Rarppwer from the Geovernment of India or any Sue gevermment,

Inpasirmeni Lows Allowance: The Oompany's impairmen sllowanos is decved from estimaws inofuding dofaule on erest peyimente, The oomipeany hes oonsidored & FD of 0 4% o
ealeiilintivg e g e alleganee.

Eeinily of Ne of Projusis, Snnslioned ang Diskgryspenl sfponns .
1
i
RGN 1% ) b ) E|
Tuiul 174 o9, 719,7h | 18 WaH,I0 (Hi 1 fud LLIV,
Abive figiares inolides sandiion ani disbursemeny of ienm lean masle ypder window (¢ & @ (danotjoned) b | 36048 Yrorn & Chisbursedi- Be 68 10,71 @reiel whizh has bren elosed b
Rl furthey it alao includes sanetioen of Ba, b6, 11 O (0IFA Dalhi T M, Jabalpun fe OO Odiahia) which has bean canvelied Uae i1EFA et meening dated 1700 2008 due e min-
dnmmenEEment of e and o sssauiiem of lnan Ggiesment
Eummary af ECL provisinne s
An ul As ub
Pertimiini B1.08.2084 | §1,08,3098 |
| Allswanus for Impairmant on Teru Loans
| (i Torm faang itiivi) works f Plani arl Equipmen 0.3 7o |
—— — .. —— - L] 83
[Trgviaizn as par BB) Frodantisl Marms —
As ub An ab
é o a1on 3034 | 41003008
oy
ihandiand Assois Giee 28,040
Pan:Performing Atset [NPA) - =
iy 10 L. 28,08 )
nn anding n
Fartiouiars = e
TR A -Rai-de di-Marad | A1 Mar: IT]
il Livaiia :
Pariodming Asssia
Higpfursd Annrig Tohad, B LALLE N DA LA B i LRCIE N
| MudPupfurining Asast (NFA) i

Hots |
Bk (Bnpaviad Oradii Lass) PFrovisions
Inil AR 108 reg , wheh ihe mewilii Hali i B anmrk and suppuriabils

ham -
informatien available. in nrdlr ta compara tha riak nl' a default socurring At the balances aheot dam with e viak of & detauin .wumm al imm1 pengiition «f the Hianoial
Anarin,

Wien kel abveadi il thmi in if Hintsl 1] iR alwui paii evenis, surreni vandijions anid masenalsde and
suppariahle forceasts of future avonis and seanemie conditione, The degres of jJudgement that w resquired oy tha set It aii i Wabsiliiy of datailed information,

Wi i ki, e doinfiaiy has ol ennn scioss and deladll o and delad i eejaianil o mise B 88 days, This cimpasg Tl s alrang seces meiBaniam @hseein
tha IJ-unvumr FROIEWE e Inuutlmum Iﬂ advanes in hale BRUTTW BUCLHINL o1 whe dawe of firer disburgamaent. The imwrss ahiarjed on all leane are pakl by the Minisuy of
Kl Tk i Thm € unly e inliai et il Rigfher

vl i virimr ¥ il I -

pr
e tha uhnnnﬂn -:r defiuile wro minimsad

49




HINHER EBUCATION FINANDING ADERCY
JEEH U FAE A S0 | TATL L D04 T4y

A Bon Bunidig Fineneiel Eempaay Llovnsed dadoy feetion § af tie Eompailis Ao, 2018) [Privats Limited & dovernmant Com pauy]
{All smaounts are in orere of Indiss Bupess, unleas acheranss ataredj

Higher Education Financing Agency

HOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINARNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 01, 3034

Exposurs at Dafaull (BAD)

T isimtiviibing talaner of peasl chioged seeodinis durig B 5 3000500 at dhe repaating daie is conalileeed ae BAD by ihe Company meluding seerued Iniersi

Loas Ciiven Defuull (LOD)

ual Report 2023-2024

LA i af earimals of he lss [rom a iransacion givan ihal & dalaull oeeurs. Rassd on pasl perlormaines, the feeindiry rale hae been 1000 and all asdaiints are Blandarl

ELUE
Frobability of defaunlt (PDj:

P is defined as the probability of wheiher borrowers will default an their sbhiigations in the future. Por Assers in Suge 1, & 13 month PR e required.
Paied oiy Ui sl Wond, e (ompany had pol some aoross any defaull of delay in panoipal fepaymen] by Daivewer Inshiutions, Thitgh there has Been delay in prompi
paymeni of Inferest on losns The company has worked dut EOL as per ibe pasi trend and the naiure of loan. As per workings ihe Company's impairmeni allowsnes is
derivesd from sarimates inclading ilefaull o imsven payieits. Colleotve imnpaimen sllowsiies aie oalouloe] using Bl muiel whooh apgookimate ciedi sonilitiome m
porialios of leats, Thios, & midimam 9D ol o0 @ comaidered (alling inte secoiint the outstanding lamiity of ponsl charged sccounts to the totsl outstanding liability as on
31.00. 2024, As i Impaiimant allowance 8 lower thian the provisioning of suinidend ssseos ieguined under IRACE, thi differonca @& appiopilated 1w & soparate Dy

Rrarrye,
Amgai Oross Frovislons Nat Frovisions ﬂﬂ?;
Asset Classilieation a8 per WO Norms clasiifioatio| earrying | o8 Fequired Guirying Feijlied as proviiiens
noan par Ind | amoiint a8 | under Ind i par 1RADP and TRACE
Afl 100 por Ind AS Afl 100 Rarms iy
[Farforming Assuis
Mandard Anset Pge | 7,504,584 921 v.ss853 30,66 f21 b
Hihbatal 7,804,854 9.3 | 7.sssa32 30,88 [FIE ]
Hon-Farforming Assais (NFA|
Huibswtmnebiarsd. Doubaful, Loss Ansein Mage & . :
Dxihar siems wech a8 guarsniees, loan commiimenis, sio which are inihe soope of Hinge | - - -
vl AR P00 haat ot doversil divider rarvent Inoome Recognitinn, Asasr Classifieannn
and Provisioning (IRACT norms
N PSR, o I 3 X 20,44 (X144}
* For ihe diffrrenen beiworn Ined AR 1009 sl |HACE norms the company hse mansned impairment reserye 1o the sxwend of Bs. 2144 Cr
Asssl slagsllicatizn and Frovislen Risclosics of Loan for Marsh 31, 3032
P Qruss Frovisiens a Frovisions | T belween
Assel Classification as per ABI Horine Alassinuaiin] ey iadiia. ki reanised w
per s par Ind | amount as | under Ind i:".: par IRATE m:,
Afl 160 par Ind AS Afl 100 nGTmE
mafs "
Farforming Assats js
Minnekard Annet Huage | 6, 166,42 .08 | 618050 98,00 L Desj
Hiilitatal &, 186,43 7.03 | &,180.30 1B.00 180§
Fain e i foriming AssstaNFA)
Bubmandard, Doulaiul, Loas Anseis Maje A o 1 . w 0
ch il guRMmniees, lonn commiimenis, #tc. which are in the doope of firags | . g . " .
U iinl sl difiaber diiiredl lcnidne Heengniling, Assei Classilicalian
anid Froviaion IRAC norms
Foral s _— . ——
Bage 1 6,166,43 708 | 6,189.09 an.0% [18,06)|

* For the diffrrenoe betworn Ind A8 109 and IRACZ]® norms the company has continued sardior impairment reserve of Re. 19,39 Cr against requirement of Re. 165,08 Cr
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HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY
{(CINIUTA999KAI01 TNPL 1 0A474)

Higher Education Financing Agency

{A Non Danking Financial Company Licsnasd uinder Ssotion fi of ihe Conipanies Ao, 2015)

[Privats Limitod & Government Company]

{All nmounts ors in ororo of Indian Bupsss, unleaa atharwlas atatadj

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL BTATEMENTE TFOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2034

nual Report 2023-2024

_TRADE PAYABLE
Fartizulars As at 31.00,2024 | As ar 31.03.2023
Tirtil suistanding duis of miers antorprisos and small aniorprisos £ -
Totpl aiiisinnding dides of cieditom other than miers
aa.7a A1 .47
eiiciprises and sinall snleiprises” 144
Total ?3133 ﬂi?a
P Manapomeni Poos pavahbile to Canara Bank - e A1 23 Cr (1% af Dishurarinant Fes .‘. E,‘H' E.rl plis ¢ n e B 62 O midnua THE @

TEM% e 12 Or Lo Ba, L7 Or foe Y 2020-24

* (For FY 2033-23 Manageiment Feed payabie 1o Conprn Hank « Be 20,000 © (1% of Disbursemoni e, 2,000, 86 O plus GET G 18% tm,
Sdd O minus TR @ 10% Ke 3,9 © Le Be 3143 i)
As ut 91032024
Partivulars l':‘y::“ 1-2 yours | 3-8 yours | Mors than 3 youms Total
T T ol e cnterprises and small cnicipines : : : : :
2. LHhers 44.73 - - - 33.74
3. LMuputed ducu — MEMIE - - - = &
+ |'.IllEH"|ﬂ duna - Qrhora . . . a s
[ atal e o 1, 1 - — s 86758
An at 31.00.2023
Purt loulars "';";::':“ 13 yours | 33 yoars | More than 3 years Total
1. Dues of micrs enierprises and smoll entorprines - - - - -
_%‘ hers : Al40 . ' . 31,43 |
i Apiited ]5 s = MHEM | 5 - " 2 a
| 4. I hspuied dues - Others = - - - 2
Tatul Gi4n e z = 3144

BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DERT SECURITIES)

Partioulars

As al 31,03,3024

As al 31,03,2033

At amartiaad aoaat:

{n} Torm Loan Indisn Rupes Loan from Rankis (Recured)
Curini'i Hunlk

(1) Warking Capital Dimang L
Iiehiadl Pupes loam rom Dk (Unseoined)®
{e} bainm Tram delaled pariies

At Fair Valus through profit oF loss)
() Term Loan «Ihdian Bupes Loan feom anks (feeived)
il Working Cuplinl Demnngd Loan
Indiwn rupee lown from banks (Unsocurod)®
{e] Loans ivam relatad parties

Designated st Fair Valuo through profit or loss:
{8) Torm Loan -Indisn Rupn Lonn from Nanks (Seourad)
h) Wailiing Capital Deimand Loan
Indian rupes laan from banks (Unseeuared)®
{r] Lonna irom related partios

Tatal

AT 5O
A7R.O0

A7

Huorrowinga in [ndin

A7 500

Torrowinggs ol side Tidin

HEecurily © Hypolheeaiion of receivables in respeei of the specilied stamdard loan aaueis of ihe Company with an aesct coverige ratio of 1.00

times
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Tarm Loan -Indian Rupss Loan

=

w uroh, 2024
Tonurs (from tho dato of Dalanoo Bhaot)

Aliave 2 yeal =
Livie within 12 years
T .

Amant |
37500

: T —
[T wlthln A Eimmh-

Totul

ATH.00 |

F-ﬁm-ﬁgu Indetesl e peljialinen|

Nol Amount
S

Torm Loun -Indlan Rupes Loan from Nanks

L‘?Inu.r. hn tha duta of Bulunce i”ll.llll'

Hale of Interest

Plueun 1 yaur
Mg within 1-2 yeirs

Ainaiint

3. O,

Wi within | yairs

01,0000

e wii hin i} Menih®

0. 00%

0.00%

Total
Slieiive (il

[ Grenl tnle nduntment®s
Nat Amount

*titerest s paid monthly shile principal to [ rrunl:l it wear nltor the daie of fira disbursgment,

** Effeetive intereat rate adjustinent is Nil beenuse there s ne processing fee or othor chisrgos on Tor

There iw oo deluu' as on the balnnee sheei date in ropaymiont af birrowngs and (nrersar
10 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

m lann

Fartigulars

As @t 31,00,3034

As al 31,03,3023

Tnterest nuerued on Borrowiigs
CHE Unaprnt Accaunt

0.1
140

Tatal

4,45
A_AE |

11 CONTINGENY FROVIMIONE ASAINET STANRARR ARSETH

Farticulurs

An at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

[ Teovlniing o Spndard Assets

Fatal

13 OTHER NON:-FINANCIAL LIABILITES

Partioulars

As al 31,03,3034

As a1 31,03,3033

Provislon for Audit Fees
Prowigion for T recdivable
Htututory dura payahle
T8 Papsibls *

Gther Mfaynbileos

Total

0
167
3

313

& B3

"
= —

o2
241
S A

S ayalde neludes ulll\.munum'mrnl Foos n, 5.12 Ur (17 291 Cr) and on Audit Foos 0,002 Cr

BENGALURU

FRN:0031355

52

3.13



Higher Education Financing Agency

HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AOENCY

(CINUT4R9UHAZD I THPL 1O 04 74

{A Non Benking Finuneisl Compeny eonsod under Beslion 8 of (he Companies Aed, 201 3)
[Privats Linitsd & Govarnment Compuny]

[All amniinis are in erore af Indlan Hipess, inleas sllerviss @talod)

HOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL BTATEMENTE FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2034
18{A) EQUITY BH CAPIT.

nual Report 2023-2024

Pariioulars

Authorissd Bhars Capital
{1000, 00,000,000 sguny ahiarcs of Ra, 10 saoh)

As gt 31,03,0004 | Asat 31,03,3033

The Company has only one class ol shares celeiood booas vogiiity alwivn Ibnﬂ'ﬂ‘\lﬂ. A i winlive ol Wi LLLrs

entitlod in one vaie per shore helid

143,000,130 pRARELE SR8
Issuad and Bubsoribed and Mlly Paid:up RA0A,TH £,200,75
(B30 57 50,000 cquiy shares of Ka. 10 aach issued & fully paid)
Total lesisd and Hubseribed and Mully Fali-u 5,203.78 5,283.78
Mzgonoilistion of number of Bhares
As ai 21,00,3034 Al A1
Equiiy Bh --I o Hulnhr.vl' Amount ll':l:::r i mund
Dalminee nm at the beginning of the previous yeai B, 249 07 50000 52Ud. 75 0,249 87 50D BaWLTE
9% s al the end & | 5,39,3%,80,000 8,295.78 8,3%,37,80,000 | ___B,290.78 |
Tarma/ righta attachsd to sguity sharss

Fanh holiler of @ity ahinish is

Company in g Mol for prafil Company licenseid ader seetion B of the Companies Acl, 2003 amd heooe o portien of the sicplias, other
inoama or property shall e paid or tranafered, diveeitly or indireeily, by way of dividend or bonus or otherwise by way of surplus (o e
m#imhera of the compiany, Upon wingding up or disselution of the conipany, the remaining property waitor the sausfaotion of all ihe debis gl
Piaiailivien sbadl o e olisteibiitad amongst The msimbeie of the oempany, but shisll G given of tanei@rred o such sther company haviy

mirmilinr objecieg
wnd Insalvancy Fund.

andl il iF Thind remainiogg property s sald on oided of any aithoriy, e piogesils of i1 will be oiedited o e Rebabiliauoen

Detnils of Bharss held by sharsholders, holding mors than B% of the sggregesis sharss in the Company snd Bharcholling of

Fromoter:

Partioulars [ _ABNE BLOH, 3003 Ak 00,303,
ek o afsharye | bhohlingin | Moofshares | % heldingis
1 Minisiry of Hducation [Devornmoni of India) 4 11 25,00, 000 RUIR | AR AN TN LHI Y
2. Cunora Bunk A4, 13,50.000 9.0u AR, 1LA0,000 6.09

LA (414

regariding heoreficial infei
Bharchalding of Pramaoior,

138} OTHER EQUITY —

Pariivilars As ui 21.03.3034 | As ail 21.035,2023
1. @tatutory Bassrve pursuant (o Baction dB00 | 17
of tha REI Act, 19084 (Rafer Nots 1 halowj

Uponing balance ERTIN..} ABT. 10
Aale] rnmler o sofplus Balanes in the

Bintement of Inoome and Haprndiiure £1f4 0y TS0
Dalanos as st the snd of ithe year A06.81 aadn.nn
2. lmpalrmant Ressrva (Rafer Hots 3 balow)

tipening helsnee 19,30 19,409
Adlid Tiansia lwin siirplis alanoe i ihe

Hialvipenl of lnvome anl Bajeaditaie #.48

Balanws as al The aad &l tha ¥aaF 21.44 ie.0v
3, Hsisinad Barnings

Qjmriihing balanes 1,426+ 1,00%.03
Aild: Burplus for the yoar REE N, A97.26
Lmmt Appropria o

Tranaiee to Srarutmy RBossive MO 7045
Tranufer to Impalrmeni Rossrve 208 E
Balanos as ai the end of the year 1,600.68 1,026G.84
4. Othsr Compr T

Crpaning balanee =

Movemients duving the yaar

| otnt 4,047.80. ,883,78 |

fure and purposs af wwl!ri'-n
i. Statutory Reserve (Btatutory Reasrve purdauant to Bsotion 485-IC of The RII Act, 1904

4 i : ﬂlﬂfhlw <1 Aga.an REAT,pe,000 |
An e the p-nu..lﬂnl::“vf = m':w.::w, pu-h.an“ Wa regialer ol shaisholders / members and other declaratons rcewed fram sharehaldern
the aluie shaiechobling fejrescinta Inth iegal and fenetinial owneidanip of dhaica. Thate I8 ne mavement in

Beetion A81C of Ressive Mail of Indla Aoy, 1034 ("RHAL Aoy, 10047 delines (hat sveiy non Banking Dianoe insuation whieoh s s Company

whall ereale o reserve Bumd pod isansles theeein g sum ool less Thain Iwenly peeeenl ol s el
Etatemant of Income and Expendiiure belore any dividond s declared, The Company has iransior
TOA8 € to Staliilarny ressrve pursiant o Section 45-1C of BN Act, 1834

wirpliin sveiy Yoai ae diaclossd G the
n o amount of e, G800 Ciorms (2043

2. Impeirment Meserve An iwi WD coeabar (/20109204 170 DO (NRFC),CC D N 10U /23 10,106/ 2019:30) Wher impaiiment
allownnoes under Ind A% 104 & lower than (b provissning required under TRACE fincluding sinndard assel provisioning), NI3PCs/ ARCs
shall appiopilate the dilfersince rom their ol surplus o defllolt Ger G W0 68 sfparate Clmpsiemgnt Rosove’. The balance in the
Tmpuirmeni Heseive' shall fuol be e Akt ipilntory sapital. Fuither, oo withilvawals shall be peiimited i this eserve withoul

prior parmiskion from ihe Deparis Wil

4

BEMGALURLU
FRN:0031355
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PR For Year Ended For Yoar Ended
Partioulars 51.08.3034 a1
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HIGHER EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY

(CIMU7TASUD ARG FNFL LOAAF4)

(A Mean Banking Fi sl O L under Boetlon B of {he Camjaiies Ast,2015)
[Private Limited & Government Congany]

{All smounis sre in erore of lidilad Rupses, uialess sotherwiso stated)

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTE FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 3i514

INTENERT INGGME

Intorest on Louns 4 'y
Interest O Dieposin/Aavings p G

tia flaansial asasts moasursd st amoriised coski *

Interoat on Loans ARG L dﬂ.l.li-l

Interent On Depusi /Hivings 16.51 Ak
on Fi ial Asssta Ol at fuir valus through profit or loss

Touinsl i L - .

Intonrosl D Deposii /Bavings ¥

P et ey
= The revenue (om operations is eariod Iy India and sceraed st eifociive interest tale on assels, s Bteres rae will ba dacidad as per the
ineres policy of the HEFA Doard,

*Ta furiber support the infrstidoiune wotivities of highor education inabiuiions, the company his fedideed RO 5§ 86% pa during I7Y 2023-24 (1Y
g i) londing o redueiion n overall intereal ineoms deagiis sibsaital o 0 loan boak.
Disaggragatad rovenus disslasies

The eompany g o Mo Banldig Plianoinl Company (s dealing in Fineneial Instriments witlin fhe soope of nd AS 100 and provisions of Ind AR
LIS e ot in the it an speh dispgeregnted rovenus disclosures (Window-wise rovenus disnggervigelioi] so'e il diviin. Furrhor
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sy wEEns dama @=a am)
Office of the Director General of Audit {Central Expenditure )

A o ¢ A e, e vt 9 R0 ooz

DGACR Buiiding, Indraprastha Estate, New Daihi -110 002

N CWIZ-4HHEF AZN24-25/ %4, Dhate: 19,009.2024

III.

Wanaging | Jinecior EE EP ﬂtl'

Higher Educstion Financing Apency
I Floos, Stock Exchonpe Towers,
M. It Cross load, 1.C. Road. Bengalur - 560027

Subject: Provivions] Comments on the financial statements of Higher Education Fimameing
Ageney, Hengalur fir the vear ended s March 2024,

Sir,

Phease lind attached dbong with this letter the provisional comments on the financial
sttements of Higher Frucation Financing Apeney, Bengalumi (i the finaneind wear ended 319
March 2024, You ane requested 1o reply 1o these Provisional Cammenis within 3 days of receipi
ooff thas commununication in consaltation wih the Independent Auoditor. Flease forwand ibe chectmnic
cupics (pdl & doex ) of your replics on e-mail iz ook Lo o™ cene o Bl

Pleise ocknowledise the receipt of this leer

Sincercly,
Fnel: As nhove, irl
2 A
e {FEta Sinahy
e Tl -
L i II\ v, Director (AW
_,-'-"'_F:-E'-_I. " i r s

Ph. ; 81-11-23702422 a-mal . dgaceficag gow.in
Fax  91-11-23702379 Watsite: heps.iicag gov ivooninew-dalhi-giten
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Frovisional Comments an the Financlal Stitements of Higher Eduwcation Financing
Apency, Bengaluru for the venr ended 31% March 2024

A. Balunce Sheen:
1. Asset: Financial Assel

Laans: $7,555.32 Crore
As per pard P51 ol lnd A L0 Financial [nstrements, i pan of the consideration given is
for something other than the financial instrument, an entity shall measure the Gir value of the
Fimmmseinl instrument as per lod 45 115 As such, a loon given at conecssional roie shouwld be
imitially recopmized a its” fair value which shall be cilculated as the present value of all finure
cash reccipts discounted wsing the prevailing market interest rate(s) of interest for a similar
instrument, Further pooe 050 20 (), an entity shall gcoount for such instrumend. {for which
fair value differs from the tinsaction price) al the mexsurement required, iF that fair value is
evidencod by & quoled price in an active market for an identical asset or lability (i.c. o Level |
input j or based on o valuation techmique thal wses only dala from observable markets,

I thiz context, it was observed thar HEFA borrowed an amaomt of £ 500 crore Trogn O AR AR A

bank 5 3 months MULE plus Speemd elsbiped By e bank (which ot ihe time was B 540,08
These funds wene then fent to Higher Hducation lnstiiations (HEL at the mte of 5.55% pa
hnitgress mdg pubjeat o rovision by the Doard of HEFA), Bowever, the company. did not

measure the fair value of the assel in ling with requircments of te standard and the assel was
shovwn al the transaction price. Audit calculmed the presemt value of ofl future o lows on
the assel after discounting @ the market rate of & similar finsncial instrument which in the
instance has becn taken 1o be 8.2% (Rate of bormowing the ol from CANARA Bank i.e,
dain from observable marketz). The Chir vidie of the asset has boen coleylaied o be 3287 05

v, The difference beiween the transaction price (500 crore) and the fair value (287,05
crore) of the asset shoukd be recognived in Statement of Income & expenditure by showing it
under a separste head of expense | o 5,0 250a0]

Further, the compay has glso mot disclesed the policy of mitial recognition of financial
instraments in the Material Accounting policies [ o Mo 7 5imi].

As such, Current Financial Assets (Loang) are overstated by 321295 crore and Expenses (o
be shown under a scparate line item) for the vear is undersimted by 221295 crore, further
resulting in overstitement of exeess of Income over Expenditure For the year by $212.95 core.

{AD#13 Revised & Modificd)
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2. Assel: Current Assel

Non-financial Asset: Current Tax Asset (Note No. T) - 219.97 erore.

(1) The above did not include an amount of 20,52 erore, being amount of interest receivable

under S e Fpesre Tas Ao 191 onerefand of Tax Deducted ot Source
LS AR A Viwr 2071-27 (Previous Year 2020-21) for which Sonting
CU (1 2.2022) of Tneome tax act, 1961 confirmed the refund amount a1

2.9 crare after msceag ordor wak possed on (407 2022
(AD #5)

(1) The above did not include an amount of 30,57 crore (From April 2023 1o May 2024)
being smount of interest receivable on refund of Tax Deduweted (Cloolabe | s por 20408

ol (b Income jax Act, |90 ol Sounce rebatsd b0 Asssmienl sear 202324 (Financkn

F N2 p o on b 03 0 T eafisd wis alse compleiod on 2805, 2024 sfier
kb of s 004 The receipt of the inferest omount should have been

accounted for in ling with | ratreah 8 ol Ind AN W Evipis cocurming after Remorting

Non-inclusion of the imterest on refund of TIXS for Asscssment Year 2021-22 & 2023-24 has
thus resalted in understatement of Current Tax Asset and Onlser Equity by £1.00 crore.

(AL D)

fiii} In the notes o accounts Tor Current Tax Assets, the company has G|l 2864 oo

L Nmane il year J22-23%, Flowsver, an amount ol ) 06 ¢rone ot af this amouni

SErvAE i L UFs metomd eoperiiible (o fmancisl svear Ni32-25. As such. ‘3 suitohis
disclosure should have been made in the notes 1o accounts.

(ACHHA)

B. Chiher Comments:
|, The company has not prepared the Statement of Changes in Fquily in the format as
prescribed under Division 11 of Schedule 11 1o the Companics Act, 2003 as they have not
reporied on Other Equity component Tor the previous linancial year.

(AL #2)

C. Independent Auditors Report:
L As per Chopten 1 ol the Muster Disection - Non-Banking Financlal Companics Auditor’s
Repon (Reserve Bank ) Direction, 2016, in addition 1o the report made by the auditor under
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ik

section 143 of the Companics Acl, 200 5, the auditor should include a stalement on Paa 3

(s applicable) - Material o be included in the Auditos’s Report {1 300 ) & (07 for
HEEAS.

{ Additionad j
I effect of the provisonal comment Al the exoess of Income over Expendiire of the
company is overstated by an amoumd of 212,95 crore, 161.48% of the actual surphus 1.2,
£131.87 crore (234482 cnone - ¥2 1 295 crore), As such, (hie troe & T view of The stanussn
Atichilor pap e iSeess ol [Rcoiis ovel Lxpsndolisrs ks nol syt it

[ Adelitiomial)
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£ 1" Floor, Stock Exchange Towers,

B e T . Ne. 51, 1" Cross, 1.C.Road,
w S HEFA S
= Email- info@hefa.co.in

REF: HEFA/CAG/PC/2023-24 Date: 21.09.2024
To:

The Deputy Director,

Office of the Director General of Audit,

{Home Education and Skill Department),
Indraprastha Estate, Mew Delhl - 110002,

Sub: Reply to Provisional Comments on the accounts of Higher Education
Financing Agency for the year ended 31* March 2024.

Ref: Your letter CW / 2-48/HEFAS2024-25 /314 dated 19.09,2024.

With rofererce to above, please find enclosed our point wise replies (o the Provisions
Comments made on the accounts of Higher Education Financing Agency for the year 2023-

24,

Kindly acknowledge receipt of this letter.

Yours faithfully

ViR

MOHAMMAD THOPHIC
MAMAGING DIRECTOR & CED

Encl: As stated above.
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£ 1" Flaor, Stock Exchange anl:fn

£3 No. 51, 1 Cross, 1.C.Road,
: H E FA Bengaluru- 560 027,
v 7 084 & Tel- 08043705895
) &1 Email- info@hela.co.in

Reply to Provisional Comments on Financial Statements of Higher Education
Financing Agency (HEFA), Bengaluru for the year 2023-24.

A, Balance Sheet:

o 5 Asset: Financial Asset
Loans: ¥7,555.32 Crore

As per para B5.1.1 of Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments, I part of the consideration fiven
is for something other than the financial instrument, an entity shall measure the fair value
of the financial instrument as per Ind AS 113, As such, a loan given at concessional rate
should be initially recognized at its’ fair value which shall be calculated as the present value
of all future cash receipts discounted using the prévailing market Intepest rate{s) of interest
for a similar instrument. Further para B5.1.2A (a), an entity shall account for such
instrument (for which fair value differs from the transaction price) at the measurement
required, if that fair value is evidenced by & quoted price in an active market for an identical
assel or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technigue that uses only dala
from abservable markets,

In this context, it was observed that HEFA borrowed an amount of 2500 crore from CANARA
bank @ 3 months MCLR plus Spread charged by the bank (which at the time was
8.1540.05). These funds were then (ent to Higher Education Institutions (HE[s) at the rate
of 5.55% p.a. (Interest rate subject to revision by the Board of MEFA). However, the
company did not measure the fair value of the asset in line with requirements of the
standard and the asset was shown at the transaction price. Audit calculated the present
value of ali future cash flows an the asser after discounting at the market rate of a similar
financial instrument which in the instance has been taken to be 8.2% (Rate of borrowing
the funds from CANARA Bank i.e., data from observable markets). The fair value of the
assot has been calculated to be #287.05 crore. The difference between the transaction price
{2500 crore) and the fair value (¥287.05 crore) of the asset should be recognized in
Statement of Income & expenditure by showing it under a separate head of expense [Para
B5.1.2A (a)]

Further, the company has also not disclosed the policy of initial recognition of financial
instruments in the Material Accounting podicies [Note No. 2.3{m)).

As such, Current Financial Assets (Loans) are overstated by #212.95 crore and Expenses
(to be shown under a separate line item) for the year Is understated by 2212.95 croeg,
further resulting in overstatement of excess of Income over Expenditure for the year by
¥212.95 core

HEFA Reply: Ind AS 113 applies when another Ind AS requires or permits fair value
medsurements or disclosures about fair value measurerments (and measurements, such as
fair value less costs to sell, based on fair value or disclosures about those measuréments).

Fud
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£ 1 Fioor, Stock Exchange Towers,

ne HEFA L

® Tol- 08043705885
= Emadl- info@hela.co.in

Our approach to recognizing financlal assets at fair value aligns with Tnd AS 105, MCA
updates, and ICA1 gusdelines,

As per paragraph B5.1.1 of IND AS 109, The fair value of a financial instrurment at initial
recognition is normally the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received, see also paragraph B5.1.2A and Ind AS113). However, f part of the
consideration given or received s for something other than the financial instrument, an
entity shall measure the far value of the financial instrument. For example, the fair value
of a long-term loan or recelvable that carries no interest can be measured as the
present value of all future cash receipts discounted using the prevailing market
rate{s) of intercst for @ similar instrument (simiar as o currency, term, type of
interest rate and other factars) with a similar credit rating.

Since HEFA IS not granting interest free loan and HEFA is collecting the interest at
competitivie rates and the principal on the lban. Hence, the fair value of a financial
insbrument at initial recognition is equal to the transaction price and fair value measurement
a5 par para B5.1.24 of IND AS s not applicable for HEFA,

In view of the above the observation may be dropped.
1 Azset: Current Asset
Non-financial Asset: Current Tax Assot [(Note No. 7) - ¥19.97 crore.

(i) The above did not include am amount of 20.52 crore, being amount of interest
Fecelvable under section 2444 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on refund of Tax Deducted
at Source pertaining to Assessment Year 2021-22 (Pravious Year 2020-21) for which
Scrutiny. Order wfs 143(3) (20.12.2022) of Income tax act, 1961 confirmed the
refund amount at ¥2.89 crore after assessment order was passed on 04.07.2023.

HEFA Reply: As per INDAS 115 recognition of revenue reguires that the same shall
be certain and measurable,

As in the instance case, interest on TDS for FY 2020-21 (AY 2021-22) Is neither
certain nor measurable. Hence interest on TDS deducted for FY 2020-21 (AY 2021-
22} shall be recognized upon receipt.

In view of the above the obseérvation may be dropped.

{ii) The above did not include an amount of 20,57 crore (From April 2023 to May 2024)
being amount of interest recelvable on refund of Tax Deducted (Calculated as per
2448 of the Income tax Act, 1961) at Source related Lo Assessment year 2023-24
(Financial Year 2022-23) &5 on 31.03.2024. The refund was also completed on
28.05.2024 after intimation an 09.05.2024. The receipt of the interest amount should
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© 1% Hoor, Stock Exchange Towers,

& Tel-0HO 23705835
= Email infof@hela.coin

have been accounted for in line with Paragraph 8 of Ind AS 10: Events occurring after
Reporting Period (Adjusting Events).

Non-inclusion of the interest on refund of TDS has resulted in understatement of
Current Tax Asset and Other Equity as at the cnd of the voar by 20,57 crore.

HEFA Reply: As por IND AS 1D adjusting & mon-adjusting events can be identifiod
a5 under:

Adjusting events after the reporting period:- Those that provide evidence of
conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.

Mon-adjusting events after the reporting period: - Those that are indicative of
conditions that arose after the reporting period.

TD5 receivable shown under books af HEFA Is self-assessed and refund |s subject to
condition of the IT Authority approval, IT Authosity approval (Intimation order) hes
been received on 09.05.2024, Hence same shall is non-adjusting events after the

reporting period. Status of the pending refund has been shown under note 7 of the
financials.

In view of the above the observation may be dropped.

(ili}In the notes to accounts for Current Tax Assets, the company has disciosed 28,64

B,

i.

crere against financial yvear 2022-33. However, an amount of 21.06 crore out of this
amount pertains to TDS refund receivable for financlal year 2022-23. As such, a
suitable disclosure should have been made in the nobes to accounts.

HEFA Reply: We have sabed it for compliance and suitable disclosure will be mace
in subseguent financial statements.

Other Comments:

The company has not prepared the Statement of Changes in Equity in the format
25 prescribed under Divigion 111 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 as
they have not reporied on Other Equity component for the previous financial year.
HEFA Reply: While drafting the financial, the table for previous reparting period
wnder Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024 was
migsed, However, the same was disclosed under Mote 13{B) "other equity”.

We have noted the audit observation for compliance in ensuing financials.
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c,

vﬂ HEFA Sengalu 56002,

& Tel- 080 43705895
E Email- info@hefa.co.in

Independent Auditor's Report;

1. As por Chapter Il of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies
Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Direction, 2016, in addition to the report made
by the auditor under section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the auditor should
include a statement on Para 3 (as applicable) - Material to be included In the
Auditor's Report {Para 3(A) & 3{C) for HEFA}.

HEFA Reply: Addition report as per Chapter I of the Master Direction - Non-
Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bark} Direction, 2016 will
be obtained from the Statutory Auditor for the FY 2023-24 and Subsequent yoars,

2. In effect of the provisional comment A.1, the excess of Income over Expenditure
of the company is overstated by an amount of #212.95 crore, 161.48% of the
actual surplus i.e., ¥131.87 crore (?344.82 crore - 7212.95 crore), As such, the
true & fair view of the statutory auditor on the excess of Income over Expendibure
i= not sustainahle,

HEFA Reply: As explained under comment no. A.1, Para B 5.1.1. of Ind AS 109
s not applicable to the company. Para B 5.1.1 is applicable if part of the
consideration given s for something other than the financial instrument, The
paragraph cites an example “For example, the fair value of a long-term loan or
receivable that carries no interest can be measured as the present value of all
future cash receipts discounted wsing the prevailing market rate{s) of interost for
a stmiiar instrument (similar 85 to currency, term, type of Interest rate and other
factors) with a similar credit rating™

Since HEFA s not granting interest free loan and HEFA is collecting the interest
al competitive rates and the principal on the loan. Hence, the falr value of a
financial instrument at initial recognition is equal to the transaction price and fair
value measurement as par para B5.1.2A of IND AS i not applicable for
HEFA.HEFA has not given any long-term loans or receivables that de naot carry
any [nterest,

MW; A piain reading of Ind AS 109 would suggest that classification of financial assets
has to be done first and the measurement provisions would apply later. As per
Paragraph 4.1 of Ind AS 109, classification of financial assets an entity shall
classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profic or loss on the
basis af bath:

(2] the entity's business model for managing the financial assets

Arid
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{b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset,

In this regard, we would like to draw reference to Paragraph (m) of the accounting
policies of HEFA. As per this accounting policy, all recognized financial assets are
measured in their entirety at their amortized cost. HEFA measures their financial
assets at amortized cost because:

a) The financial asset is held with a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets to collect contractual cash Aows

&) The contractual cash flows of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to
cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI test). Since the
SPP1 test s satisfied, HEFA has opted for a policy of accounting for all their
financial assets at amortized cost. Since the fimancial assets are measured at
amortized cost, the necessity for falr valuation does not arise. Therefore, Para
B5.1.1. of Ind AS 109 is not applicable ta the financial assets held by HEFA.

Hence Based on the above explanation, the Income over Expenditure has not
been overstated and gives a true & falr view as it is in conformity with the Tndian
Accounting Stardards,

In view of the above the observation may be dropped.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT ON THE ACCOUNTS OF HIGHER
EDUCATION FINANCING AGENCY, BENGALURU FOR THE YEAR ENDING 3157

MARCH 2024,

The preparation of financial ststements Higher Education Financing Agency, Bengalurg
for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) is the responsibility of the management
of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptrolier and Auditor General of
India under section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 of the Act Mmhﬁwﬂﬂnﬂhm-ﬂﬁc
wmmmmmmuﬁmuummammmm
done by them vide their Audit Report dated 15.07.2024, :

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
nﬁmﬂlﬁtnfhﬂmﬂmﬂmmmm
Bengaluru for the year ended 31 MM%MWHﬁAﬂm:
wmummummmuhmm
of the statutory avditors and is limited primarily to inquirics of the statutory auditors and
WMﬂlthﬂwmluﬂmufmdhmmf

On the basis of my supplementary audit, nothing significant has come to my knowledge
Mmﬂmmmmmmmwmhmmmhﬁ
section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor m-ﬂ-ﬁ,
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